Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Keystone Realtors Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion .

1.

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Keystone Realtors Limited
(“the Company”) and its jointly controlled entities (refer Note 55 to the standalone financial
statements), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Loss), the Standalone
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information,

- In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company and its
jointly controlled entities as at March 31, 2025, and total comprehensive income (comprising of
profit and other comprehensive loss), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under

Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
“Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Company and its jointly controlled entities in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance

in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
' Revenue recognition from Contract with Customers '
(Refer Note 1B(a) and 32 to the Our audit procedures in relation to management's
standalone financial statements).  assessment of revenue recognition includes following:
In  accordance  with the e Read the Company’s revenue recognition accounting

requirements of Ind AS 115 policies and assessed compliance with Ind AS 115
‘Revenue from contract with ‘Revenue from contract with customers’.

customers’, revenue from sale of o Understood and evaluated the design and
residential units are recognised at implementation, and tested the operating
a point in time or over time based effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
on the contract entered with the controls over revenue recognition.

customers. ¢ Obtained and read the customer contracts on a test

lSigr}iﬁcafltjudgement is required check basis and evaluated the management
in identifying the Peff'?i‘maﬂﬂff assessment with respect to satisfaction of performance
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Key audit matter
obligations and determining

when ‘control’ of the residential
units is transferred to the
customer. Further, the Company
assesses  various  conditions
included in the contact with
customer to identify whether the
Company has unconditional right
to payment for performance to
date or not. Based on this revenue
is recognised at point in time or
over time.

Considering the above-
mentioned  factors, revenue
recognition has been considered
as a key audit matter.

Assessment of net realisable value (N_RV) of inventories

(Refer Note 1B(g) and 11 to the
standalone financial statements).
The Company’s inventory is stated
at the lower of cost and NRV. As at
March 31, 2025 the carrying value
of inventories is Rs. 119,178 Lakh
(refer Note 11 to the standalone
financial statements).

NRV  determination  involves
estimates based on prevailing
market conditions, current prices,
the estimated future selling price,
cost to complete projects and
selling costs,

Considering the significance of the
carrying value of inventories in the
standalone financial statements
and the involvement of significant
estimation and judgement in
assessment of NRV, the same has
been considered as a key audit
matter.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

obligations al a point in time or over time and that
revenue is recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy.

Tested sales transaction during the year on a sample
basis, by examining the underlying customer contracts
and final demand letter evidencing the transfer of
control of the residential unit to the customer along
with occupation certificate based on which revenue is
recognised.

Assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of
revenue-related disclosures in accordance with
applicable Indian Accounting Standards and
applicable financial reporting framework in the
standalone financial statements.

Our audit procedures in relation to -management’s
assessment of valuation of inventories at lower of cost and
NRV includes following:

Read and evaluated the accounting policies with
respect to inventories,

Understood and evaluated the design and
implementation, and tested the operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over valuation of inventories.

Tested on a sample basis that inventories are held at
the lower of cost and NRV, by comparing cost of
inventory and estimated cost to complete the project
with corresponding selling price or the estimated
future selling price by reference to recent market
prices in the same projects or comparable properties,
net of selling cost.

Assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of the
inventory related disclosures in accordance with
applicable Indian Accounting Standards and
applicable financial reporting framework in the
standalone financial statements.

Assessing impairment of Investments in and loans given to subsidiaries, joint
ventures, associates and other related parties B

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of investments and loans in
subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and other related
parties includes following:

(Refer Note 7 and 15 to the
standalone financial statements).
As at March 31, 2025, the carrying
values of Company’s investment in
subsidiaries, joint ventures, and
associates is amounting to Rs.
46,824 Lakh. Further, the
Company has granted loans to its
subsidiaries, joint  ventures,
associates and other related
parties amounting to Rs. 99,746
Lakh as at March 31, 2025 (Refer

Read and evaluated the accounting policies with
respect to impairment.

Understood and evaluated the design and
implementation, and testing operating effectiveness of
controls over the Company’s process of impairment
assessment. e
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Key audit matter

Note 15 to the standalone financial
statements).

Management reviews regularly
whether there are any indicators of
impairment of the investments by
reference to the requirements
under Ind AS 36 “Impairment of

Assets”. For cases where
impairment indicators  exist,
management  estimates  the
recoverable amounts, An

impairment loss is recognised if
the recoverable amount is lower
than the carrying wvalue. The
recoverable amount is determined
based on the higher of value in use
and fair value less costs to sell.

In respect of loans, the
management performs the credit
risk assessment for each loan by
assessing whether the borrower
has a financial capahility to meet
its cash flow obligations.
Significant  judgements  are
required to determine the key
assumptions used in
determination of recoverable
amount or forecast cash flow of
borrowers which includes
estimation of expected selling
price, cost to complete the project
and discount rate.

The assessment of the recoverable
amounts requires the use of
significant  judgements  and
estimates, and thus same has been
considered as a key audit matter.

Other Information

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Tested samples of investment made and loans granted
by the Company and assessed the financial condition
of entities in whom the investments were made or
loans were granted by obtaining the most recent
audited financial statements of such entities.
Performed inquiries with management on the project
status and tested future business plan of entities in
whom investments were made or to whom loans were
granted to evaluate their recoverability.

Assessed the appropriateness of the Company's
valuation methodology and model used to determine
the recoverable amount.

Tested reasonableness of assumptions such as
expected selling price, cost to complete the project and
discount rate based on current economic and market
conditions used for determining the recoverable
amount/ financial capability and performed a
sensitivity analysis over key assumptions used in
determining the recoverable amount.

Assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of the
disclosures made by the management in respect of
such investments and loans in subsidiaries, joint
ventures, associates and other related parties in
accordance with applicable Indian Accounting
Standards and applicable financial reporting
framework in the standalone financial statements.

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially

inconsistent with the standalone financial statements
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
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When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate
action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the standalone
financial statements

6.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company and its jointly controlled entities in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and its jointly
controlled entities and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and eslimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements

that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

. In preparing the standalone financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.

. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

Process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements

9.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

10.As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial sta tements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances Under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements-in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls, et

&T
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11,

12,

13.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the
current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

14.

The financial statements of 2 jointly controlled entities (refer Note 55 to the standalone financial
statements) included in the standalone financial statements of the Company reflect total assets
of Rs. 7,051 Lakh and net assets of Rs. 1,324 Lakh as at March 31, 2025, total revenue of Rs, 297
Lakh, total comprehensive loss (comprising of loss and other comprehensive income) of Rs. 36
Lakh and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 31 Lakh for the year then ended. These financial
statements and other financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us by the management, and our opinion on the standalone financial
statements (including other information) in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these jointly controlled entities, is based on the reports of such other
auditors and the procedures performed by us.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter of our reliance on the work
done and reports of the other auditors.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

15,

Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Qrder”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (1) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order; to the extent applicable.

o
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16. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

6]

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in
paragraph 16(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive loss), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of aceount.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
reference is made to our remarks in paragraph 16(b) above on reporting under Section
143(3)(b) and paragraph 16(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Rules.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone

(h)

financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure A”,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone financial statements— Refer Note 51 to the standalone financial
statements.

il. The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2025 under the
applicable law or Indian Accounting Standards, as it does not have any material
foreseeable losses on long-term contract. The Company did not have any derivative
contracts as at March 31, 2025,

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025,

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in Note 59(vii) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, direetly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note
59(vii) to the standalone financial statements);
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V.

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the Note 59(vii) to the standzalone financial statements, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 59(vii) to the standalone financial
statements); and

() Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

As stated in note 61 to the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors of the
Company has proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the
members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance
with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and that has operated throughout the year for all relevant trans actions
recorded in the software, except that the audit trail is not maintained for certain
transactions, for changes made through specific access and for direct database changes.
During the course of performing our procedures, other than the aforesaid instances of
audit trail not maintained where the question of our commenting does not arise, we did
not notice any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, or not preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

17. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule Vto the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 612754N/N500016
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Partner
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UDIN: 25102022BMOKWI3622

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2025
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
of Keystone Realtors Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025, in conjunclion with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Reporting under clause (i) of sub section 143 of the Act in respect of adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements is not applicable to 2 jointly controlled
entities namely Rustomjee Evershine Joint Venture and Lok Fortune Joint Venture. (Refer Note
55 to the standalone financial statements)

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2,

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our andit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonahle assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
frand or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our andit opinicn on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference
to standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statermnents.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

o

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal finanecial controls
system with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,
2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by
ICAL

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
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Date: May 14, 2025
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the
books of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we report that:

i (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
Assets,

The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasanable.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed
in Notes 3, 4 and 5 to the standalone financial statements, are held in the name of the
Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (includin g Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year Consequently, the question of our
commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or
specifying the amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net
carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets does not arise.

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 0of 1088))
and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the
Company has appropriately disclosed the details in the standalone financial statements does
not arise.

ii. (a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the

(b)

iii. (a)

Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical
verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for
each class of inventory,

During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate, from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. The terms of sanction do not stipulate filing of quarterly returns or statements with
such banks or financial institutions, and accordingly, the question of our commenting on
whether the returns or statements are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of
the Company, does not arise. (Refer note 59(ii) to the standalone financial statements)

The Company has made investments in 17 companies and 1 Alternative Investment Fund,
granted unsecured loans to 37 companies and 1 Limited Liability Partnerships, and stood
guarantee to 4 companies. The Company has not granted secured loans, secured /unsecured
advances in nature of loans, or provided security to any parties. The aggregate amount
during the year and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such loans
and guarantees to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates and to parties other than
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are as per the table given below:

*

é-?,.
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(Rs. in Lakh)
Loans Guarantees
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year
Subsidiaries 43,999 28,500
Joint Ventures 4,474 15,300
Others 3,022 -

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of the above case

Subsidiaries 30,703 28,500
Joint Ventures 4,249 15.300
Others 3,022 -

(Also, refer note 49 to the standalone financial statements)

(b) In respect of the aforesaid investments, guarantees, loans, the terms and conditions under
which such investments were made/guarantees provided/loans were granted are not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

() Inrespect of theloans aggregating to Rs. 117,580 Lakh the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated and in respect of the loans aggregating to Rs.
52,117 Lakh the schedule of repayment of principal has been stipulated and the parties are
repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest as
applicable. (Also refer note 49(II)(d) to the standalone financial statements).

(d) Inrespect of the loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.
(e) Following loans were granted to same parties, which has fallen due during the year and were

renewed/extended. Further, no fresh loans were granted to settle the overdue
loans/advances in nature of loan.

Name of the parties Aggregate Percentage of the
amount of | aggregate to the
dues renewed | total loans granted
(Rs in Lakh) | during the year

Enticier Realtors Private Limited 567 | 1.10%
Firestone Developers Private Limited 564 | 1.10%
Imperial Infradevelopers Private Limited 14,012 | 27.21%
Megacorp Constructions LLP 308 | 0.60%

vP?,
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Name of the parties Aggregate Percentage of the
amount of | aggregate to the
dues renewed | total loans granted
(Rsin Lakh) | during the year

Nouvean Developers Private Limited 320 | 0.62%

Premium Buildtech LLP 628 | 1.22%

Xcellent Realty Private Limited 794 | 1.54%

Flagranti Realtors Private Limited 1| 0.002%

Krishika Developers Private Limited 223 | 0.43%

Rebus Realtors LLP 78 | 0.15%

Mirabile Realtors Private Limited 129 | 0.25%

Key Green Realtors Private Limited 88 | 0.17%

Ferrum Realtors Private Limited 1,876 | 3.64%

Key Bloom Realtors Private Limited 3 | 0.001%

Keysky Realtors Private Limited 2,619 | 5.09%

Riverstone Education Academy Private 689 | 1.34%

Limited

Keyblue Realtors Private Limited 3.552 | 6.90%

Key Galaxy Realtors Private Limited 40 | 0.08%

Keymont Realtors Private Limited 3] 0.01%

Real Gem Buildtech Private Limited 37,872 | 73.54%

Ajmera Luxe Realty Private Limited 428 | 0.83%

Raj Doshi Exports Private Limited 3,862 | 7.50%

Ashray Realtors 95 | 0.18%

Ashray Estates 350 | 0.68%

(D Theloans granted during the year, including to related parties had stipulated the scheduled
repayment of principal and payment of interest and the same were not repayable on
demand. (Also refer note 49(I1)(d) to the standalone financial statements). No loans were
granted during the year to promoters.

«J—T
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iv.  In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans and investments made, and guarantees and
security provided by it. As the Company is engaged in providing infrastructure facilities as
specified in Schedule VI of the Act, the provisions of Section 186 except sub-section (1) of
the Act are not applicable to the Company.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

vi.  Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required
to maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its
products. We have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained, We have not, however,
made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

vil. (@) In our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory
dues in respect of goods and service tax, though there has been slight delay in a few cases,
and is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including income taxes,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities, Also, refer note 51 to the standalone financial

statements regarding management's assessment on certain matters relating to provident
fund.

(b) The particulars of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2025 which
have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature | Amount Period to which | Forum where the
statute of dues | (Rs. in | the amount relates | dispute is pending
Lakh) (Financial Year)

The Income | Income 1,923 | 2008-09 Commissioner of
Tax Act, 1961 | Tax Income Tax (Appeals)
The Income | Income 11 # | 2011-12 Income Tax Appellate
Tax Act, 1961 | Tax Tribunal
The Income | Income g3 | 2017-18 Commissioner of
Tax Act, 1961 | Tax Income Tax
The Income | Income 51 | 2012-13 Commissioner of
Tax Act, 1961 | Tax Income Tax (Appeals)
The Income | Income 305 | 2017-18 Assessment Officer
Tax Act, 1961 | Tax
Goods and | Goods 45 | 2017-18 Joint Commissioner
Services Tax | and (Appeals- IT), Mumbai
Act, 2017 Services

Tax
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Name of the | Nature | Amount |Period to which | Forum where the
statute of dues [ (Rs. in | the amount relates | dispute is pending
Lakh) (Financial Year)

Goods and | Goods 4,465 | 2017-18 to 2019-20 High Court of Bombay
Services Tax | and
Act, 2017 Services

Tax
Goods and | Goads 362 # | 2017-18 to 2019-20 Goods and Services
Services Tax | and Tax Appellate
Act, 2017 Services Authority

Tax
Goods and | Goods 2,501 # | 2017-18 o 2018-19 Commissioner
Services Tax | and Appeals- 11, Mumbai
Act, 2017 Services

Tax

# Net of amounts paid under protest of Rs. 1,521 Lakh for Income Tax and Rs. 656 Lakh for
Goods and Services Tax

There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

ix. (a) TheCompany has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

of interest to any lender during the year.

On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared
Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were
obtained. (Refer note 59(xii) to the standalone financial statements)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report
that no funds raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by the
Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has taken funds from the following entities and persons on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as per details below:
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Nature of | Name of | Amount | Name of the | Relation | Nature of
fund lender involve | subsidiary, joint | (subsidia | transaction for
taken d (Rs. in | venture, associate ry/JV/As | which fund
Lakhs) sociate) utilized
Term Loan | Axis Bank 37.872 | Real Gem Buildtech | Subsidiary Repayment of
Limited Private Limited Loan and Purchase
of Acquired
-| Receivables
Issue  of | Qualified 8,384 | Keymeadows Realtors | Subsidiary | Project related
Equity Instituion Private Limited EXPENSCS
Shares al Buyers
(Q1p
Proceeds)
Issue  of | QIP 5,330 | Keystone Subsidiary | Repayment of
Equity Proceed - Infrastructure Private project related
Shares Limited borrowing and
general corporate
purpose
Issue  of | QIP 3,960 | Imperial Subsidiary | Project related
Equity Proceed Infradevelopers Private EXDENSCS
Shares Limited
Issue  of | QIP 3,692 | Keysky Realtors Private | Subsidiary | Project related
Equity Proceed Limited expenses
Shares
[ssie  of | QIP 2,918 | Keyblue Realtors | Subsidiary | Project related
Equity Proceed Private Limited EXPENSes and
Shares general corporate
purpose
Issue  of | QIP 2,150 | Keybloom Realty | Subsidiary | Project related
Equity Proceed Private Limited EXPENSes
Shares
Issue  of | QIP 1,530 | Rustomjee Realty | Subsidiary | Repayment of
Equity Proceed Private Limited praject related
Shares borrowing
Issue  of | QIP 971 | Keyearth Realtors | Subsidiary | Project related
Equity Proceed Private Limnited expenses and
Shares general corporate
purpose
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Nature of | Name of | Amount | Name of the | Relation | Nature of

fund lender involve | subsidiary, joint | (subsidia | transaction for

taken d (Rs. in | venture, associate ry/JV/As | which fund
Lakhs) sociate) utilized

Issne  of | QIP 000 | Redgum Realtors | Joint General corporale

Equity Proceed Private Limited Venture related expenses

Shares

Issue  of | QIP 530 | Navabhyndaya Nagar | Subsidiary | Project related

Equity Proceed Development  Private EXPENSOS and

Shares Limited general corporate

purpose

Issue  of | QIP 501 | Keymarvel Realtors | Subsidiary | Project related

Equity Proceed Private Limited EXPEnses

Shares

Issue  of | QIP 500 | Flagranti Realtors | Subsidiary | Project related

Equity Proceed Private Limited expenses

Shares

Issue  of | QIP 220 | Raj Doshi Exports | Others Project  related

Equity Proceed Private Limited expenses

Shares

Issue  of | QIP 179 | Mirahile Realtors | Subsidiary | Project relaled

Equity Proceed Privale Limited ExXpenses and

Shares general corporate

purpose

Issue  of | QIP 164 | Enticier Realtors | Subsidiary | Project related

Equity Proceed Private Limited expenses

Shares

Issue  of | QIP 52 | Xcellent Realty Private | Subsidiary Project related

Equity Proceed Limited expenses

Shares

Issue  of | QIP 50 | Keyolivia Realtors | Subsidiary | Project related

Equity Proceed Private Limited expenses

Shares

Issue  of | QIP 41 | Key Galaxy Realtors | Subsidiary | Project  related

Equity Proceed Private Limited EXDENSES

Shares
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Nature of | Name of | Amount | Name of the | Relation | Nature of

fund lender involve | subsidiary, joint | (subsidia | transaction for

taken d (Rs. in | venture, associate ry/JV/As | which fund
Lakhs) sociate) utilized

Issue  of | QIP 21 | Firestone Developers | Subsidiary | Project related

Equity Proceed Private Limited EXpenses

Shares

Issue  of | QIP 20 | Keyevita Realtors | Subsidiary | General corporate

Equity Proceed Private Limited PUTpOSCS

Shares

Issue  of | QIP 10 | Keyheights  Realtors | Subsidiary | Project related

Equity Proceed Private Limited EXPETISCS

Shares

Issne  of | QIP 10 | Nouveau  Developers | Subsidiary | General corporate

Equity Proceed Private Limited purposecs

Shares

Issne  of | QIP 2 | Keyace Realtors Private | Subsidiary | Project related

Equity Procead Limited EXPENscs

Shares

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,

x. (a)

we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has made a preferential allotment during the year, in compliance with the

xi. (a)

(b)

requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Act. The funds raised have been used for
the purpose for which funds were raised except as disclosed in Note 58 to the standalone
financial statements.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted anditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section
143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

.

.
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(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and as represented to
us by the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by
the Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

Xil. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it,
the reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. ~ The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of the related party transactions
have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required under Indian
Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.

xiv. (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business,

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

XV. In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the
provisions of Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during
the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause3(xvi)(c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion, the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvil. The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix.  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the halance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.

i}
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We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period

of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

xx.(a) Inrespect of other than ongoing projects, as at balance sheet date, the Company does not have
any amount remaining unspent under Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) In respect of other than ongoing projects, as at balance sheet date, the Company does not
have any amount remaining unspent under Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable,

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clanse has been
included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Qsd=
u‘\"L "

Pankaj Khandelia

Partner

Membership Number: 102022
UDIN: 25102022BMOKWI3622

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2025
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3 As at Ag g
Particulars Note March 31, 2025 March :_:.:1,t 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plantand equipment 3 1,889 867
Right-of-use assels 4 2,237 1,564
Trvestinent propertivs 5 840 881
Gewndwill 6 1,580 1,580
Other intangible aescts 6 : *
Financial assets
i lnvestinents 7 46,824 41,56
il. Other financial assets 8 530 581
Criient tax asscts (net) g 4,263 5.457
Deferred tad aoels (net) 41 147 531
Ollier noa-cuitent asscts 10 665 528
Total non-current assels 58,976 53,446
Current as.c.etzli
Tnvenlories 11 120,050 105.713
Financial assets
1. Trade receivables 12 2,177 1,239
ii. Cach and cash equivalents 13 42,710 12.497
iil. Bank halances other than (ii) above 14 11,554 6,353
iv, Loans 15 107,124 18251
v, Other financial asscts 16 23,804 19,R72
Current bax assets (net) 17 1,248 -
Other current asecls 18 12,003 13.176
Total current assels 330,660 278,101
Total assets 389,636 331,547
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity shate capilal 19(a) 12,603 11,389
Other equity
Becerves and surplus 10(h) 240,751 152,346
Total equity 253.354 163,735
LIABILITIES
Non-current liahilities
Finanvial liahililies
L Bomowings 20 19,751 52,310
ii. Leasa Liahilities 21 1,885 1,268
ifi. Trade payahles 2z

a) Tulal ouistanding dues of micre and small enterprises = =

b) Total outstanding dues of ereditors ather than (in) (a) shove 556 185
iv, Other financial liabilities 23 7,261 7,643
Provisions 24 304 217
Tolal non-current liabilities 29,847 61,723
Current liabilities
Financial Hahilities
1. Borrowings 25 15,216 21,856
ii. Lzase Liahilities o 44 273
iii. Trade payahles 27

a) Tolal aulstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 421 436

b) Total u-_'lnlnnrling dues of creditors other than (i) (a) zhove 47,146 26,080
iv. Other financial liabilities 28 5,0/6 5,503
Provisions 29 936 614
Current tax liahilities (net) 30 494 531
Other current liahilities a1 46,612 40.536
Tolal current liabilities 106,435 106,089
Total liabilities 136,282 167,812

§8216§6 331,547

The abwve standalone balance sheet should be resd in conjunclion with accompanying notes,
i panying

L
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This is the stundalome balance sheel refeived to in our teport of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registrution No. 012754 N/N500016 Keystone Realtors Limited

CIN: L45200MH1955PLCog 4208
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Keystoue Realtors Limited

Standalone statement of profit and Ioss for the year ended Mairch 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended

Year ended

Nage March 31, 2625 March 31, 2024
Income
oy cnne fromt operations 3z 55.003 101,145
Cither ineoime 33 20,512 13 848
Total income 75:575 114,913
Expenses
Comsleuction costs 34 60,417 33444
Pureliise of stork-in-trade 35 - 504
Chaniges in inveniogies of completed sale i hle units, construetion work- in- 36 (23,009) 47.508
progicss and stock-in-trade
Eipluyce benefit expense 47 8.8an 6,581
Depreciation and amortisaton expense 38 1,227 G680
Finance cosls 39 4,342 3,164
Other expenscs 40 11,020 8,433
Total expenses 62,707 100,404
Profit before tax 12,868 14,509
Income tax expense 41

- Cutrent tax 2,031 5,426

-Tax paid in respect of earlier years 165 -

- Defeired tux 427 {67)
Total tax expense 3.523 3.359
Profit for the year 9.345 11,150
Other comprehensive loss
Iteins that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remesnrements of post-employment benafit obligations 45 (172) (86}

Income tax relating to above 41 43 20

Other comprehensive locs for the year, net oftax (129) (64)
Total comprehensive income for the ycar ,2106 11,086
Earnings per equity share (basic and diluted)

Easic earnings pet share 48 7-53 9.R0
Diluted sarnings per share 48 7:45 9.77

This is the standalone statement of profit and Joss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Fiim Registration No. 012754N/Nsooon16
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Paitner
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Date : May 14, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Keystonie Realtors Limited
CIN: Lgzz00MHi905PLCog 4208

Sajal Gupta
Chief Finane ial Officer

Mumihai

Date : May 14, 2025

Chandresh #chta
Divertar
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Company Secrelary
Membership No.: 11578
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustinents for
Depreciatinn and amnortisilinn expense
Finanee costs
Levss allovwance on financial aeeois
Tmpaicment loss on financial aoocts
Reversal of foreseeahla los s

Intercst and dividend income classified a8 in\.._-:ting cash flows

Guarantee incoma
Rental inpume

Net gain /Toss in financial zuects measuied at fair value through profitand Joes

Return on Investments
Eriployee stonk oplion eapense
Operating profit before working capital changes
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) f decrease in inventories
(Inciease) / decrease in trada receivahles
Incicose inother financial asacts
(Inwvivase) / decicase in other current assels
Imercose f (decrense) in trade payables
(Decroase) f inerease in other financial Uabilities
Ircecase in provisions
Dievyeose in Other labilities

Cash (used in) / generated from operations
Taves paid (net of refunds)

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for purehiase of Property, Flant and eguipment
Loan given during the year
Loan repaid during the year
Paymeit for purehose of lnvesimicnts
Bank d-i‘pl'!-ilﬂ ]'\1-'1- el
Dank deposits matured

Cash taken over pursuant to scheme of amalgamation (refer note 55)
Net devicise in other current bank balances {other than bank deposits)

Interest and dividend received
Rental income received

Net cash flow generated froim / (used in) investing activities

C. Cash flows from finanecing activities
Piocesds from bociowings
Repaytient of horoowings
Payment of Leose Liabilities (including interest)
Equily shares issued (ineludes share application money)
Share lssue expenscs
Finanee costs paid

Net cash flow froin financing activities

Net incrense / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

12,868 14,500
1,227 680
5,074 4,8%1

142 <
915 274
= (446)
(16,392) (10,637)
(21) (532)
(87) (100)
(1,208) 179
- (1,208)
1,225 60h

3,653 8,206

(23.737) 47,934

(1,08a) 2,740

(450) (432)
(64) 1,601

10,622 (1,317)

(894) 2,032
327 165
(3.306) (33.993)
(14,520) 26,336
(3.187) (3.502)
(17,716) 22,834
(1.,577) (402)

(51,495) (110,119)

62,622 23.871

(3.867) {1,287)

(10,037) (12.631)
6,081 8,133

- 12
102 (1,142)
11,401 9,487
87 100

13,317 (83,978)
5.8606 72,336

(45,097) (24.333)

(753} (383)

8n 0l 52
(1,713) =

(4,772) (4.734)

33,612 42,938

29,213 (18,206)

13,497 3L,703

42,710 13,497




Keystone Realtors Lunited
Standalone Statement of eash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Non-cash financing and investing aclivities

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2022
Addition to Right-of-use acots (reler note 4) 1,204 1,562
Corparate Guarantee to whally owned Subsidiary and Joint Ventures (refer note 7) and (refer note 3 53

1%)

Astgand lahilities tiken over on meiger of Toccata Realiors Private Limited (rofor note 56)
- Rduction in Tmvestivients
- Pediction in borrowings
- Beturn on Investments

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per standalone statement of cash flows

{Cash and cash equivalents comprise of :

Asat As at
March 31, 2025 Muarch 31, 2024
Cashand cosh eguivalents (tefer note 13)
Cashon hand 18 57
Cheyues an hand 850 -
Balanees with barks in current accounts 1,289 2,585
Diepossit with taturity of Loss than g months 30,033 10,575
Cash and ¢osh equivalents at the end of the year 42,710 13,407

The ahove stand done stitement of cosh flows should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes,

Thisisthe ¢t indilone statement of cash fluns tefeied to in our report of even date,

Tur Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
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Partner
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Keystone Realtors Limited

Standalone statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital
Particulars Amount
As at April 01, 2023 11,388

Changes in equity share capital 1

As at March 31, 2024 11,389
Changes in equity share capital 1,914
As at March 31, 2025 12,603
B. Other equity
Reserves and surplus
. Securiti 5 ’
Particulars p‘:: rfu;f Retained Capital General Emp:;}::sto‘:k Toilu(;tt: o
reserve Earnings reserve réeserves i)utsta“diﬂg

As at April 01, 2023 80,524 34,230 1,110 23,641 622 140,127
Profit for the year - 11,150 - - = 11,150
Other comprehensive income - (64) - - - (64)
Amount received on issue of shares 51 - - - - 51
j:;p]oyee stock option exercised during the year (vefer note - _ } ) (1) }
Employee stock option expense (refer note 44) - - - - 1,082 1,082
As at March 31, 2024 80,596 45.316 1,110 23,641 1,683 152,346
Profit for the year - 0,345 - - - 9.345
Other comprehensive income - (129) - - - (129)
Amount received on issue of shares 78,867 - - - - 78,867
Amount utilised for share issue expenses (1,728) - - - - (1,728)
Employee stack oplion exercised during the year (refer note
48 38 ” - = (38) -
Employee stock oplion expense (refer note 45) - . - - 2,050 2,050
Total 77,177 9,216 - - 2,012 88,405
As at March 31, 2025 157,773 54.532 1,110 23,641 3,695 240,751

The ahove standalone slatement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.

This is the stundalone stalement of chianges in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. 012754N/N500016

&
e

/ o =
Pankaj Khandelia

Partner
Membership No. 102022

&
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Dale : May 14, 2025

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of
Keystone Realtors Limited
CH

: L45200MH1995PLC00 4208
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Chandresh Mehta
Director
DIN: 00057575

NS
j Bi anda
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Membership No.: 11578
Mumhai
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Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Background

Keystone Reallors Limited (the Company’) is a limited Company. It i incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at 7oz,
Natraj, MV Road Junetion, Andher Tast, Mumbai 400 o6g

The Comnpany is incorporated since November 6, 1995 and is engiged primarily in the business of real estate constructions, development and other
reluted activities in India.

These fimanecial statements were anthorized to be foned by the Board of Diveclors on May 14, 2025.

Note 1A: Basis of preparation
(i) Connpliance with Ind AS

The stundaline financial statemenis of the Company camply in all materdal aspects with Indian Acc winting Standards (Ind AS) notified vnder
Section 133 of the Campanies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] as amended from Hine to time and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

(1) Historical eosl convention

The standalone fnancial statements have bees prepared on a histarical cost basis, except for the following:
« certain financial acsets and financial Habilities are measored at fair value:

+ defined benefit plans - plan assets mcasured at faiv value;
« share hased payiment measured at fair valoe;

(1) Cuerent = mon ewrrent classification

All gescts and lishiiities have been classified as curtent or non-cuttent as per the Company's operaling eycle and other eriteria sel oul in the
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of business and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
reatisalion in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 4 years for the purpose of current - non-eurrent
elassification of aceets and labilities. Operating cycle for all completed projects is based o 12 months perind.

Note 1B: Material Accounting Policies

{a) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers i8 recognised when contral of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitied in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured based on the
transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other credits, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. The
Comnpany presents revenoe from contracts with eustomers net of indireet taxes in its stalement of Profit and Loss. The Company assesses its revenue
attangeinents against specific eriteria to delermine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in
all of its revenue arrangement.

Income from Property development

The Company eonsiders whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a pation of the
transaction price needs to be allocated. In delermining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of vaniable consideration, the
existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognise the revenue over the time if the Campany's performance doss niot create an assct
with an alternalive use to the Company and the entity has an enforceale right to payment for performance completed to date basis the agresment
enlered with enstomers, otherwise revenne is recognized point in ime. The revenue from real estate development of residential unit is recognised at
the point in time, when the control of the assel is transferrad to the customer and the performance ohligation is satisfied i.e on transfer of legal title
of the residential unit, receipt of accupation certificate and final demand letter issued to the customers which generally occurs on completion of
plr\jl"{"t.

The Company becomes entitled to invoice customers for constmiction of residential and commercial properties based on achieving a series of
construclion-linked milestones, When the Company satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services it creates a
contract assct hased on the amount of consideration eamed by the performance. Any amount previously recogitised as a contract asset is reclassified
to trade receivables at the point when the Company has the right to consideration that is unconditional. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers gonds or services to the euslomer, a condract liability is recngnised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever
is earlier). Contract liahilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

The Company recognizes incremental casts for abtalning a coniract as an aeset and such costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss when
Tevenne is recognised for the sald contract,




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the ycar ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax puyable on the current period’s toble income based on the applivable toome tax rate
adjusted by changesin deferred tar nocts and lishilities attributable to temporary differences and to unosed tac loscs,

(1) Corrent fncome tax

The corenl income tax charge is ealonliled on the badds of the tac laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, The
provision for current tax is made at the rate of tax as applicable for the income of the previons year as defined under the Income Tax Act, 1061,

Manugement periadically evalustes positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regolalion is suhject 10
interprelation. Tt establishes provisions where appropriste on the basts of amounts expected to be poid to the tax authorities,

Current Lox aeeets and Log Hobilities are offset where the entity has a legally enfieccable right to offsct and intends either to s=ttle on a net basis, or
to realize the nssctand settle the Hability simultaneously,

[i]) Drfcfred fax

Deferred income tax is vecognised vsing the Hability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax hoses of sects and labilities and
thelr carrying amouls as per financial stilements as at the reporting date. Deferred income tax is also oot acconnted for if it arices from initial
tecognilion of an aoeel or linhility in a transactinn ofher than a business combination that at the time of the transaction afferts neither accounting
profit ner tavable profit (fax loss)

Deferred income tax is delermined nsing Lax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacled by the end of the reporting perind aid
are expecled to apply when the related deferred income Lax asset is realised or the deferred income Lax lability is settled,

Deferred tox assets are revognis=d to the extent that it is prohable that future tuxable income will be available against which the deductilile
temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and wnused tax eredits could be ulilised.

The carrying amount of defecred tax assels is reviewed at each reporting dite and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probsble that sufficient
taxable profit will be avaflable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become prohable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be

rreovered,

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary didferences between the carmying amount and tax bases of nvestments in subsidiaries, joint
venlires and associates where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable futire and taxable profit will not be avaiiahle
against which the temporary difference can be ulilised,

Dieferred tax aesete and Habitities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset corrent tax asects and liabilities and when the deferred
tax halances relate to the same Loation anthority.

Curent and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other compiehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the Laxis alse recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(e) Leases
As alessce

Assets and Habilities arising from a lease are inilially messured on a prescnt value basis. Lisbilities include the net present value of the fiaed
pavinents (inchuling in-suhstance fived paymends), less any lease incentives receivahble. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rale
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannol be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessees incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lesses would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right of-use assetin 2 similar economic environment with similar teriis, security and conditions,

To determine the ineremental borrowing tate, the Comipany uses recenl third-party financing received by the individual lessce as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions sinee third party financing was received.

Lease pavments ate allocated between prineipal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or Joss over the Jease period so as to produce a
constant petiodic rate of interest on the remaining halance of the Hability for each perind.

Right-ofuse asscls are measured st cost comprising the following:

« the amount of the inftial measurement of lease lishility

« any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any incentives received
« any initial direct costs, and

» restoration costs,

Right-of-use assets are generally depiceiated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Comipaiy is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase opiinn, the right-of-use assel is depreciated over the undedying asset's useful life.

Paymients associaled with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assels are recoghised on a Straight-line hasis as an expeiise in
profit ar loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less,

Asalessar

Lewse income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term, Initial dicect
cnst fncurred obtaining an sperating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying assct and recognised as expense over the leass term
on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are ineloded in the balance sheet hased an their nature.




Keystone Realtors Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All arnounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(d) Tmpairment of non-financial assets

Gandwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite veeful Jife ars net ouliect to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or nore
frequently if events or changes in cireumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assels are tested for impainment whenever evenis or
changes in cirenmstances indicate that the carmying amount miay not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
2eel’s carrying srmonnt exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's falr value less costs of disposal and value
in use. Tor the purposes of amvessing fnpainment, soocts are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash infows
which are largely independent of the cosh inflows from other 2ssets or groups of assetslcash-generating units), Non-financial assets ather than
gowdwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed [or possible revessul of the impairment at the end of each reparling period.

(e) Cash and cush equivalents

For the purpose of preseidation in the standalone staterient of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents inelndes cash on hand, deposils held on cali
with financial instilulions, other short-term highly Houid imvestinents with original matorities of Josg than three months that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cosh and which are sulject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdraft. Bank overdralts are shown within
horrowings in eurvent liahilities in the standalone halanee sheet.

() Trade receivables

Trade teceivahles are amonnts due from eustamers for goods sold or semvices perfarmed in the ordinary course of business. Trivde recedvobles are
teveginised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The company holds the trade teceivaliles with
the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefire measures then subseguently at amortised cost nsing the effective interest
miethod, lees loss allowanice,

(g) Inventories

Inventories are valued as under:

(i) Inventory of completed salealle units

Inventory of completed sateable nnits and stock-in-trade of units isvalued at lower of cost or net Tealisable value,

(it} Constriwtion work-in-progress

The constriction work-in-progress is valued at lower of cost or net reatisable value, Cost includes cost of land, developrient rights, rates and taxes,
comstruction eosts, hortowing costs, other direet expenditure, and appropriste proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter
being allucated on the basis of normal operating copacity, Cost of inventorics also include all other costs incucred in bringing the inventories to their
present weation and condition,

Net reslisable value is the estimated salling price in the ordinary course of business less the estinated eosts of completion and the estimated costs
fecessory to mske the sale.

iil) Constretion materials
The constrnetion materials are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, Cost of construction msterial eomprises cost of purchases on moving

weighted eversge hasis. Costs of inventary ineludes rates and taxes and other direct expendilure are determined after deducting rebates and
disemnts;

(h) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financiol asset of one entity and a financial lability or equity instrument of another estity.
Financial acscts and liahilities are recognised when the Company becores a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial asscts:

Classification

The Crmnpany classifies its financial assets inthe following measurement categories:

« those to be measnred subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or thiough profit orloss), and

e those measured at amortised cost

The class fication depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contraciual ters of the cash flows.

Initial recognition and measurement

Regular vy purchases and sales of financial assels are resognised on trade-date, the date on which the Companies commits to purchiase or sale the
financial asset, Financial ascets are recognised initiaily at fair value phus (excluding trade recelvables which do not eontain a significant financing
compunent), in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributahle to the aequisition
of the financial asset, Transaction costs of financial 2ssets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed of in profit or loss.

Debt instruments _

Deht instruments are subsequently messured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOLL) or fair valne through
profit or lnes (‘FVTPLY) till de-recognition on the hasis of (i) the entily's business model for maneging the financial assets and (i1) the conts actial
cash flow characteristies of the financial asset, e




Keystone Realtors Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Amortised cost:

Ascets that are held for eollection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely pavinents of prineipal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investinent that is subscguently measured at amortised cost and not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or Inss when the asset is derecognised or impaived, Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income tsing
the effective intercst rate methad.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Asects that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the finandial acets, where the auets’ cash flows represent solely
payiments of principal and interest, are meacured at FVOCL Maveinents in the carrying amount are talien through OCT, exeepl for the recognition of
inpaiiend gaing or losses interest revenue and foreigin exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously pecognised in OCT s reclassified from equits to profit or loss and recoguised in other invome /
(expenses), Interest ineome from these financial assets iz included in other income vsing the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or lnss (FVTPL):

Aseots that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measived at FVIPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
mieasired at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss in the perind in which it arises, Interest incomie from these financial assets
are recogriised in other income,

Equity instruments

AL equity investinents in scope of Ind AS 109 are mcosured at fair valoe. Equity instrumients which are held for trading are clos<ified as at FVTPL.
For all other equity instiiments, the Growp decides to elussily the some either as at fair volue thioagh other eompreliensive income (FVTOCT) or
FVTPL.

The Coinpany twkes such elertion on an instrument-by-instrument bosis. The dassification is made on initial recagnition and is irrevocahle.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
tecagiised in alher comprelensive income (OCT). There is nio recyeling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of siich investinents,

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the eansolidated statement of
profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assels

The Company assesses on a forward looking busis the expected credit losses assoviated with its assels carried at amortised enst. The impairment
methadelogy applied depends on whether there has been a significant incresse in eredit rizk. Note 43 details how the Group determines whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Derecogniltion of financial assets

A finaniial asset is derecognized only when:

» the Company has transferred the rights to receive cosh flows from the financial asset or

« tetains the coniractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to oné or
THOre tecipienis,

Whete the entity has treansferred an sssel, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial zesel. In such cases, the financial aseet is derecognised., Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
owtiership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial assel nor refains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial assel is derecognized if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset, Where the Company retains control of the financial
pesel, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involverent in the financial aset,

Income recognition

Intercstincome
Interest ircome from Bnancial assets at amortised cost is caloulated using the effective interest rate method and recognised in the consolidated
staterment of profit and loss as part of other income,

Tnterest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of financial ssset excepl for financial asscts that
subsequently became eredit-tmpaired, For credit-impaired financial assets the effective rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset (after deduction of the Inss allowance)

Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and at FVOCL Dividends are recognised as other income in profit er
162 when the right to receive pavment is established. This applies even if they are paid ot of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend cleady a
recovery part of the cost of the i estment.

Other income
Al ather income is scconnted on acorial basis when no significant uncertainty exist regarding the amount that will be received,




Keystone Realtors Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the yeor ended March 31, 2025
(ATl amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Financial liahilities:

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial labilities are initially messured at its falr value plus or minus, in the case of a financial lability not at fair vatue through profit or loss,
tran=action costs that are directly attributable to the fse/ ariginstion of the financial liability,

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabililies are clussified as mensured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial linbility is classified ag at FVTPL if it is classified as held for
trading, or it is a derivalive or it is desipnatad 28 such on initial recognition. Pinancial labilities at FVIPL are mieasured at fair valoe and net goins
and losses, induding any interest expense, are recognised in the comsolidated statement of profil and loss. Other financial liabilities ace
subscguently measured at amartised cost nsing the effective intesest method, Interest expense and forcign exchange gains and losses are recogiised
in the consctidated staterment of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on devecognilion is also revognised in the conszalidated stitenent of profit and lees

Derecognition
A financial liahility is derecognised when the ahligation specified in the contract is discharged, concelied or eapires,

Offselling financial instrumenis

Financtunl aasets and Babilities are offset and the net amount 1§ teported in the consolidated halanee sheel where there is & legoty enforeesle right
to affset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net beois ar realise the aooct and settle the ability sl oneossdy, The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on fubure evenits and must be enforceshle in the normal conrse of business and in the event of
delault, insolvency or bankruptey of the Commpany ot the connterparty.

(i) Property, plant and equipiment

Tteiis of property, plant and eguipment are stated at historical cost less scoumulated depreciation and impairment, Historieal cost compriscs of the
prrchase price including import dities and non-refundable taves and direct]v attributable expenses incurred to bring the asset to the location and
condition necescary for it to be capalle of being operated in the manmer intended by management.

Sishisequent eosts are included {n the aseet’s carrying amount or recagnised as a separate ascet, as appropriale, only when it is probahle that future
geonaniie benefits avsociated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item con be measured reliably, The carrying anwat of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is devecognised when replaced. All other repairs and malntenance are charged to profit or loss dudiig
the reporting perind in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calodated using the written down value methad (except for office improvements which are being deprecialed on straight Tine
method), to alloeate their cost, net of residual values, gver the estimated useful lives of the assets, The estimated useful lives is in accordance with
the Schedole TT to the Campanies Act, 2013, except in case of plant and machinery which is based on technical evalualion done by the managecent's
expert, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual valies are nol more than 5% of the original cost of the nssel. The zeels’
pesiduat values and uselul lives are reviewed, snd adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting perind,

The mianagement estimates the useful life for the property, plant and equipiment as fallows:

Asset Useful Life
Plant and machinery 6 years
Office equipment §ycars
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Crmnpnidces 3 years
Tehicles B years

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount, These are included in profit or loss within other incone
[ other expenses,

Leasehald improvenents are depreciated over the shorter of their useful life or the lease term, unless the enlity expects to use the assets beyond the
lease term.

(j) Investment preperties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, are classified as
investinent properties. Investiment properties are messured inilially at its cost, including related transaction eosts and wheze applicable borrowing
costs, Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic henefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and mainlenance costs are expensed
when incurted. When part of an investment property is replaced, the carryving amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Investinent properties are deprecisted using the siraight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Tnvestinent propertes genesally have a wseful
life of 60 years (ather than ROC structure 3¢ years),
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(k) Goodwill:

Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment Insses. Gaing and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amonnt of
goodidll relating to the entity sold.

Goudwill is allocated to cosh-generating units for the purpose of impaiviient testing, The allocation is niade to those cash-geneialing units or
Cornpaiy of cosh-generating unils that are expected to benefit from the business combination in - shich the goodwill arose, The units or Company of
units are identified at the lowest level at which gondwill is manitored for internal management purposes

(1) Intangible assels

Intangible aoocts are stated at acguisition cost, net of accumulated amarisation and aceamlated impairment loeses, if any. Intangible o are
amnitised on a written down value hasis over their estimated useful lives.

The mianagement estinates the useful life for the intangible aseet is as fallows:

Asset Useful Life
Camnpister software 5ycars

An zooct's carmving amouit is written down imvmediately to its recoverable amount if the aoet’s cartying amount is greater than its estimated
revoverable amonnt,

Gains and loeees on disposals are determined by comparing provecds with carmying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other income
/ other expenses

(m) Trade and other payables

These amonnts represent liahilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liahilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period or operating cycle, as
applicable, They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost nsing the effective interest methad.

(n) Borrowings

Buntuwings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Barrowings are subseqoently measured at amnrtised cost, Any
difference between the procesds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
bortowings using the effective interest method.

Preference shares, which are mandatordly redecmabile on a specific date, are clussified as liabilities, The dividends on these preference shares are
recognised in profit or loss as finance eosts, d

Rorrowings are removed fram the standalone balance sheet when the ohligation specified in the contract is discharged, eancelled or expired. The
differesice between the carrying amount of a financial Hability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any nom-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loes as other income / other expenses.

Where the terms of a financial lahility are rencgotinted and the enfity issnes equity instrumients to a aeditor to extinguish all or part of the liahility
(debt for equity swap), a gain or losz is revognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the earrying amount of the financial
liahility and the fair value of the equity instriments issued,

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruinents with substantially different terms shall be accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of 2 new financial lability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the lerms of
an ex sting financial Hahility or a part of it fwhether ar not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debior} is accounted for as an extinguishmient
of the ariginal financial lishility and the recognition of a new financial linhility. The difference between the cartying amount of a financial Tiahility (or
part of a financial liahility) extinguished or transferred to annther party and the consideration paid, inclnding any non-cash sssets transferred or
lahilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss,

Borrowings are clussified as eurrent labilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the linhility for at least 48
manths after the reporting perind, Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-tern loan arrangement on or before the end of the
teporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the enlity does nol classify the liahility as
current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the consolidated financial statements for iscue, not to demand
payinent as & consequence of the breach.

{0) Borrowing eost

General and specific hartewing costs that are direetly atiributable to the acquisition, construetion or production of a qualifying assel are capitalised
during the perind of time (except for the contract on which revenue is recognised over the perind of time) thal is required to complete and prepace
the ascet fur its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale. Capitalisation of barrowing costs is suspended and charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss during extended periods when
arctive developent activity on the gualifiing zsset is interrupted,

Tnvestinent income earned on the tempacany investment of specific borrewings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
horrowing custs eligible for capitalisation.

Other barrowing costs are expensed in the perind in which they are tncurred,




Keystone Realtors Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
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(p) Provisions and contingent liabilites

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resonrces embodving economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and theie is a relizhle estimate of the amount of the ahligation.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses,

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the tepurting perind. If the effect of the tiine value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected fulire cosh flows at
a pre-tac rate that reflects current nurket sssessments of the time value of money and the riskz specific to the liahility. Where disoonnting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the pueage of time is recognised 2s an inferest expense,

Contingent liahilities

Contingent Hiabilities are disclosed when there is a posshle ehligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
ocCenrTenee or non-eccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whally within the control of the Company, or a present ohligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probabie that an outfiow of resources will be required to seltle the ohligation or a refiahle estimate of
the zmonnt cannnt be made.

(q) Employee benefits

(i) Short term Dbllgatlnns

Liahilities for woges and salaries, inchoding non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within period of aperating cycle after the
end of the period in which the emplovees render the related service are recognised in respect of emplovees’ services up to the end of the reporting
perind and are measured at the amonnis expected to be paid when the Habilities are settled.

(ii) Other long term employee benefit obligations

The liahilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled whally within period of operating cycle afier the end of the perind in which the
empluyecs render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit eredit method, The benefits are discounied using the
ruarket vields at the end of the reparting perind that heve terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adiushiments 2nd changes in actuarial assumplions are recognised in profit or lnss, The obligations are presented as current labilities in
the balance sheet if the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting peciod,
regardless of when the setual settlement is expected to oecur.

(iii) Post-employment obligations
The Gronp aperates the following post-employmient sehemes.

L defined benefit plan i.e. gratuity
- defined contribution plans such 2z provident fund

Graluity ohligatinns

The lishility or seset recognised in the consolidated balonce sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined
benefit alligation at the end of the reporting perind less the fair value of plan asseis. The defined benefit obligation is ealeulated anmually by
actiaries using the projected unit credit method,

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated fitire cash outflows by reference to niacket yields at
the end of the reporting period on governmenl honds that have tevms approximating to the terms of the related ohligation.

The net interest eost is caleulated by applying the diseount rate to the nel halance of the defined benefit ohligation and the fair value of plan assels.
This cost is inchuded in emplavee benefits expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss,

Remensurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial zssumptions are recognised in the period in which
they cecor, directly in other comprehensive income,

They are included in retained eamings in the srandalone statement of changes in equity and in the standalune balance sheet,
Changes in the present vatue of the defined benefit ohligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immedialely in profit
or loss as past service cosl.

Defined contribution plans

The Company peys provident fund, ESIC, ete. contributions to publicly sdministered provident fimnds and other funds as per local regulations, The
Cesmpany has no further payment ohligation once the contributions have been paid. The contribulions are ac ounted for as defined contribution
plans end the contributions are recognised as employes benefits expense when they are incucred,
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(iv) Employee options

The fair value of options granted under the Rustamjee Employee Stock Option Plan 2022 is recognised as an employee benafits expense with a
curresponding increase in equity. The tolal 2mount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

= including any market performance conditions (e.g, the entily’s share price).

= exchuding the imipact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g, profila ility, sales growth targets and remaining an
emplovee of the enlity over a specified time period).

« incliiding the impact of any non=vesting conditions (e g, the Tequirenend for emplovees to save or hald shares for a specific perind of tine),

The total expense is recognised gver the vesting perind, which is the perind over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfizd, At
the end of eoch perind, the entity revises its estimates of the number of aptions that are expected to vest based on the nom-roarket vesting and
service conditions, It recognizes the impact of the revicion to original estimates, if any, in profit or loes, with a corresponding adjustinent to eguity.
For Croup tran-actions involve repaymient armangements that requice one group entity to pay another gioup entity for the provision of the share-
hoced pavinents to the supplices of goods ar services, In such coves, the entity that receives the goods or services shall acoonnt as a cashi-sottlad
share-hosed payment ttansaction,

Where shaies are forfeiled due to a faillure by the enployee to satisly the service conditions, any expenses pievionsly recognised in relalion to such
shares are reversed effective froon the dote of the forfeiture.

(v) Earnings per share
(i) Bosic earnings pershare

Dasie earnings per share is calenlated by dividing:
« The profit attributable to owners of respective class of equity shares of the Company
* By the weighted uverage munber of equity shares (respective cluss wise) outstanding during the Gnancial year,

(i1) Diluted earnings per share

Dilited earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic esrmings per share to take into account:
« the after invome Lax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilulive potential equity shares, and

« the welghied average number of additional equity shinres that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares,

Note 1C : Other Accounting Polocies
(a) Segment reporting 5

Operaling seginents ate reporled in a manner consistent with the inlermal reporting provided to the chief operaling decision maker (COTIM),

The Brard of Directors of the Compeny has been identified as being the CODM as they assesses the financial performance and position of the
Company, and makes strategic decisions,

(b) Foreign currency tranziation

(i} Funelinmal and presendation eurreney

Hems induded in the standalane financinl statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary econamic envicorment in
which the entity operates (the functional ewrrency'). The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the
functional and presentation encreney of the Company,

(i1) Transactions and balances

Foreign enrrency transactions are translated fubo the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactivns. Foreign exchanze
gains and losses resulling from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetaty assets and liahilities denominated in
foreign curtencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss, A monetary item for which seftfement is neither planned nor
Tikedy to cccur in the foresceahle fulure is considered oz a part of the entily’s net inycstrient in that foreign operation.

(¢) Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs dicectly attribulable to the issue of new shares or oplionz are shown in equity as 2 deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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(d) Dividend

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately anthorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before
the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting pedod.

(e) Rounding of amounts

Al amounts diselased in the standalone finaneial tatements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Iakhs, unless otherwise stited, Amount
below revmding off norms adopted by the Company has heen represcnted by *.

Note 1D: Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards adcpted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated g Seplember 2024 and 28 September 2o24 nofified the Companies (Indian Acconrting
Standards) Second Amendinent Roles, 2024 and Companies (Indian A counting Standards) Third Amendiient Rules, 2024, respectively, which
aimended/ notified certain accounting standards (see beluw), and are effective for annual teporting periods beginning on or after 1 April zuz3:

o Insurance contracts - Ind AS 117; and

+ Lease Liahility in Sale and Leaseback — Amendments to Ind AS 116

These amendments did not hove say wateral impact on the amounts recognised in prior perics and are not expected to significantly affect the
current ar fulure periads,

Note 2: Critical estimates and judgements

The preperation of standalone financial statements requires the use of accouniing estimetes which, by definition, will seldon egoai the actusl
resuils, Management also nesds to exercise judgment in applying the Company's sccounting policies. This note provides an overview of the aicis
that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
Sesumptions turning ont to be differcnt than those originally assessed,

s Revenue Recognition (Refer Note 1B(a) above)
Revenue from zale of real estate inventory is recognised at & point in time or over the period based on the contract entered with the enstomers,

« Evaluation of net realisable value of inveniories (Refer Nole 1B(g) above)

Tuventorics comprising of finished goods and constriction work-in progress are valued atlower of ¢ost and net realisable value. Net Realisable value
is hused npon the estimates of the management. The effert of chianges, if any, to the estimates is recognised in the Financial Stutements for the
period in which such ehanges are detesimined.

« Inipairment losses on Investments and Impairment of financial assets (Refer Note 1B(cl) and 1B(h) above)

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amounts of Investments based on expected future cash flows aind uscs an iiderest
rate to discount them, Estintion uncertainty relales to assumptions ahout future cash flows and the determination of a suitable discount rate. For
financial assels, as at each balance sheet date, hased on historical default rates ohserved over expertad life, the management assesses the expecied
credit loss on ontstanding financial assels
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Keystone Realtors Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4 - Right-of-use assets
The Company has taken various office premises under lease arrangements,

i) The details of the right-of-use assets held by the Company is as follows:

Particulars Building
Balance as at April 01, 2023 584
Additions during the year 1,362
Depreciation charge during the year (382)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,564
Balance as at April 01, 2024 1,564
Additions during the year 1,304
Depreciation charge during the year (631)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 2,237

ii) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lcase liabilities and the movement during the ycar:

Particulars

Amount
Balance as at April o1, 2023 616
Additions 1,315
Deletions -
Accrelion of interest a3
Payment of interest (a3)
Payment of principle (2g0)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,641
Current 273
Non-current 1,368
Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 01, 20294 1,641
Additions 1,271
Deletinns =
Accretion of interest 270
Payment of interest (270)
Payment of principle (483)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 2,429
Current 544
Non-current 1,885

iii) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss:

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended '
March 31, 2024

Interest on lease liabilities 270 93

Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets 631 382

Expenses relating to short-term leases 231 272
iv) Amount recognised in statement of cash flows:

Particul Year ended Year ended |
articuiars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total cash outllow for leases (Including short term lease) 984 655
Total 984 655
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Note 5 - Investment properties

7 Asat As at
Facticalars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 1,208 1,208
Closing gross earrying amount 1,208 1,208

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumitated dl’:].uﬂ';.al Witk 327 296
Depiecintion charge during the your 41 41
Closing accumulated depreciation 368 327
Net carrying amount 840 881

(i) Amounts recognised in the standalone stutement of profit and loss for investment properics

Particulars Axat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, zo2g

Rental income 87 100

Depreciation (41) (41)

The Campany has given buildings on operating leases. These lease arrangements range for a perind belween 36 months and 72 monrths
and are cancellahle leases,

(i1) Fair value

7 As at As at
1}
Particulars March 21, 2025 March 31, 2024

Inyestment properties 2,504 2,580

Estimation of fair value

The Company cacrivs out independent valuation for its investment properties at least annually, The best evidence of fair valne is
curtent prices in an active market for similar properties. Where such information is not available, the Company cansiders information
from a variely of sources including:

(2) current prices in an aclive market for properties of different nature or recent prives of similar properties in less active markets,
aljusted to reflect those differences

(b) discounted cash fiow prujections based on reliable estitnates of future cash flows

() eapitalised income projections based upon a property’s estimated net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from an
analysis of market evidencea.

The fair values of investment propertics have been determined by an independent registered valuer. The main inputs used are
discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of fulure cash flows, All resulting fair value estimates for fnvesiment
properties are included in level 3.
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Note 6 - Intangible asseis

Particulars Somgater Goodwill Total
software

Year ended March 31, 2024

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amonint 230 1,550 R0

Additioms H : =

Closing gross carrying amount 230 1,580 i.810

Accumulated amortisation

Opening acoumulated amortisation 226 = 26

Amartisation charge during the yoar 3 > 3

Closing accumulated amortisation and impairment 229 - 229

Net carrying amount 1 i,580 1,581

Year ended March 31, 2025

Gross carrying amount

CQpening gross carrying amonnt 230 1,580 1,A10

Additions - i

Closing gross carrying amount 230 1,580 1,810

Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumnlated amartisation 229 - 233

Amortisation charge during the vear * = =

Closing accumulated amortisation and impairment 229 = 229

Net carrving amount 1 1,580 1,581

Impaicment testing of goodwill

In aceordance with Ind-AS 36, goodwill is reviewed, at least annually, for impairment. The recoverable amount is estimated as the higher of
the CGU's fair value less cost te sell, or its value in use. Directly ohservable market prices rarely exist for the Company’s assets, however, fair
value miay be estimated based on recent transactions an compatable assets, internal madels used by the Company for transaetinns involving
the same type of assels or other relevant information, Caleulation of value in vse is a discounted eash flow ealeulation based on canlinued
use of the assets in its present eomdition, excluding patential exploitation of improvement or expansion potential,

The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (CCU) is determined based on valug-in-use calculations which require the use of certain
assumplions. The caleulations are based on cash flow projections approved by management as part of the financial budgeting process The
goodwill is ailocated to the single CGU in which the Company operates ie. teal estale comstructions, development and other related
activities,

The key assumplions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount of CGU's are set out below,

March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Discount rate 15.44% 15.90%

These projecied cash flows are discounted to the present value using a Cost of Equity (discount rate). The discount tale is comimensiiate
with the risk inherent in the projected cosh flows and reflects the rate of retum reguired by an investor in the current econrinic eonditions,

The Company vses specific revenne growth assumptions for each reporting unit based on history and econamic ennditions.

As a recull of goodwill impairment test for the year mentioned above, no goodwill fmpairoient was identified as the recoverable valie of the
CGUs ta whom goodwill waes allucated exceeded their carrying amounts at all the perinds reported ahove,

Impact of possible changes in key assumptions

The Management belic:cs that no reasonably possible changz in any of the above key assumptions would cause the recoverable amount to
fall below the carrving value of any of the CGU having allocated goodwill,
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Note 7 - Non-current investments

Particulars

As at

March 31, 2025

Asal
March 31, 2024

a) In Subsidiary companies
Investment in Equity Instruments (unguoted, at cost)
32,653.000 [March 31, 2024: 32,653,000] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held
in Kevstone Infrastrichire Private Limited
Deemed investment in Kevstone Infrastructure Private Limited

1,180 800 [March 31, 26242 1,186,860] equity shares of Rs, 10 cach fully paid-up held in
Rustonijee Realty Private Limited

2,000 [March 31, 2024: 2,000 equity shares of Re, 100 each fully paid-up held in
Credenca Pl‘u[‘EI"{}' Dé\-l"l“[ll_f_: Privale Limited

14,600 [March 31, 20241 19,600] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in
Nuuveau Develapers Private Limited

10,000 [March 31, 26241 10,000} equity shores of Re. 10 each fully paid-up held in
Keellent Realty Private Limited

10,220 [March 31, 2024: 10, 220] equity shures of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in
Fircstone Developers Private Limited

10,000 [March 31, 2024: 10,000] eguity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in
Imperial Infradevelopers Private Limited

10,600 [Mareh 31, 2024: 10,000] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in
Iniact Builders Private Lin
10 000 [March 31, 20241 10,000)] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully poid-up beld in
Dymiesty Infrabuilders Private Limited

Decined investment in Dynasty Infraboilders Private Limited

10,000 [March 31, 2024: 10,000] equily shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in
Aniase Builders Private Limited

10,000 [March 31, 2024: 10,000] equity shures of Re, 10 each fully paid-up heid in Real
Gemn Buildtech Private Limited*

10,000 [March 31, 2624: 10,000] equily shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid-up held in
Navahhyudaya Nagar Developinent Private Limited

255 050 [March 31, 2024: 255.050] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in Crest
Property Salulinns Private Linited.

10,000 [March 31, 2024: 10,000] equity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid-up held in
Enitivier Realtors Private Limited

10,000 [March 31, 2024: 10,000] equity sharss of Re, 10 euch fully paid-up held in
Flagranti Realtors Private Limited

10 000 [March 31, 2024: 10,000] equity shures of Rs. 10 each fully puid-up held in
Liwsat Realtors Private Limited

1,000 [March 31, 2024 1,000] eyuity shares of Bs. 10 each fully paid-up held in Ferrum
Realtors Private Limited

10,000 [March 31, 2024: 10,000] equity shares of B, 10 2ach fully paid-up held in
Keybloom Bealtors Private Limited

1,000 [March 31, 2024: 1,000] equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid-up held in
Keysky Realtors Privale Limited

1,000 [March 31, 2024: 1,000] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in
Keyblue Reallors Private Linited,

Decimed investment in Keyblue Realtors Private Limited.

90,098 [March 31, 2024: 90,008] equity shares of Bs. 10 ench fully paid-up held in
Keyheights Realtors Private Linited

1,000 [March 31, 2024: 1,000] equity sharcs of Be. 10 coch fully paid-up held in

Key Galaxy Reallors Private Limited

an,008 [March 31, 2024: 00,00 8] equity shares of Rs. 10 cachs fully paid-up held in
Keyspace Reatlors Private Limited

Deemed investment in Keyspace Reallors Privale Limited

1,000 [March 31, 2024: 1,000] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in

Key Interiors Reallors Privale Limited

10,000 [March 31, 2024; 10,0060] equity shaces of Rs, 10 each fully paid-up held in

Ri tane Education Academy Private Limited

00,058 [March 91, 2024: 90,100] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in
Keyorbit Realtors Private Limited

90,097 [March 31, 2024; 1,000] equity shares of Rs. 10 sach fully paid-up h=ld in
Kieyvihar Reaitors Private Linnited

1,000 [March 31, 2024: 1,000] equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid-up held in Key
Green Realtons Peivate Limited

1,000 [March 31, 2624: 1,000] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in Keysteps
Reltors Privile Linsited

10,000 [Maich 31, 2024: 10,000] equity shares of Bs, 10 cach filly paid-up held in
Mirahile Realtors Privale Limited

7,007 7.007
1,654 1,634
8641 B.641
1,517 1,517
665 6ho
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
103 103
8 B
1 1
1 1
1 1
26 26
1 1
1 1
42 42
. W
1 1
» -
= #
¥ -
9 9
= *
9 9
* =
* =
1 1
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g .
# %
# B
1 1



Keystone Realtors Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. Asat As at

Ductntos March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
00,097 [March 31, 20241 1,000] equity shares of Re, 10 each fully paid-up held in 9 »
Koyieadows Realtors Private Limited
1,000 [March 31, 2024: 1,000] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in ¥ '
Gueanhiomes Realtors Private Limited
1000 [March 31, 2024: 1,000] equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid-up held in ¥ *
Keymajestic Realtors Private Limite
510 [March 31, 2624z 510] equity shures of Bs, 10 2 h fully paid-up held in Kevmiont & £
Bealtors Private Limited
1,000 [March 81, 2024:1,000] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in * %
Kevinarvel Reallors Privale Limited
1,000 [March 81, 2024: 1,000] aquity shares of Re. 16 each fully paid-up held in * g
Rustonijee Scaview Realtors Privuts Limited
1,002 [March 31, 2024: 1,000] eyuity shuses of Rs, 10 each fully paid-up held in Keyace # *
Realtors Private Limited
1,000 [March 31, 2024: Nil] equily shares of Bs, 10 each fully paid-up held in Keyeurth .
Realtors Private Limite
1,n00 [March 31, 20241 Nil] equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully poid-up held in Keyedge ¥ -
Realliws Private Limited
1,000 [March 31, 26242 Nil] enuity shares of Rs. 10 each fully puid-up held in Kaoyshelter * -
Realtors Private Limited
1,000 [March 31, 2024: Nil] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in Kevhestow *
Beiltors Privale Limiled
1,n00 [Mareh 31, 2024: Nil] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in Keypalin ¥ -
Realtors Private Limited
1,000 [March 31, 2024: Nil] equity shares of Re. 10 each fully paid-up held in Keyelite % -
Readtors Private Limited
1,000 [March 31, 2024: Nil] equity shares of Rs. 10 zach fully paid-up held in Keyagua * -
Reallors Private Limiled
1,000 [March g1, 2024: Nil] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in Keyestella ' -
Realtors Private Limited
1,000 [March 31, 2024: Nil] equily shares of Bs. 10 2ach fully paid-up held in Ronstone " -
Reultors Private Limited
1,000 [March 31, 2024: Nil] equity shaces of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in Keyfionna * -
Realtors Private Limited
1,000 [March 31, 2024: Nil] equity shares of Re. 10 each fully paid-up held in Keymarrisa " ~
Realtors Private Limited
1,000 [March 31, 2024: Nil] equity shares of Rs. 10 zach fully paid-up held in Keymontana % -
Realtors Private Limited
1,000 [March 31, 2024: Nil] equity shares of Bs. 10 each fully paid-up held in Keyolivia » -
Resltors Private Limiled
1,000 [March 31, 2024: Nil] eqiity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in Keyevita . -
Reallors Privale Limiled
Investinent in Peembum Build Tech LLP 1 1
Imvestinent in Rebus Reallors LLP ¥ =
Investinentin Kapstar Realty LLP 1 1

Investment in preference shares (unquoted, at eost)

2,620,302 [March 31, 2024: 2,620, 502] 0.000 % Non-camulative prelereince shares of 134 134
Rs. 10 cach fully paid-up held in Entiver Realtors Private Limited
5,71,236 [March 31, 2024: 5,71,236] 0.01 % Non-cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10 57 57

each fully paid-up held in Crest Property Solutions Private Limited

Tnvestment in Non-Convertible Debentures (unquoted, at amortised ecost)
5,000,000 [March 31, 2024: 5,000,000] 12% Optionally convertible Debentices (OCD] of 5,000 5,000
Rs. 100 each fully paid- up held in Imperial Infradevelopers Private Limited




Keyslone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

X As at As at
Prrvieales March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(b) In Joint Ventures
Investment in Equity Instruments (unguoted, at cost)

5:241,004 [Mareh 31, 2024: 5,241,004] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in 0,005 9,005

Kapstone Constructions Private Limited

Deervied investment in Kapstone Constmictions Private Limited 4,994 4,392

9.541,775 [March 31, 2024: 9,541.775] 10 o™ Series I1-B rated, Com polsorily Convertible 9,742 742

Debenture of Bs. 100 each fully puid- up held in Kapstone Constrirtions Private Limited

(refer muite 56)

23,141 23.139

5.000 [March 31, 2024: 5,000] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in Iyotiding i i

Comstrnetion Private Livaited

5,100 [March 31, 2624: 5,100] eyuity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid-up held in Redgum

Realtors Private Limited ¢ p

Desived imvestiment in Redgum Bealtors Private Limited 42 44

35.000 [March 31, 20241 5,000] equily shares of Re. 10 coch fully paid-up held in Ajiiera

Luxe Realty Private Limited 35 L

5,100 [Macch 31, 2024: Nil] equity sharss of Rs, 10 2ach fully paid-up beld in Rostia

Realtors Private Limited 1 o
() In associates

Investment in Equity Instruments (unquoted, at enst)

3,650 [March 31, 2024: 3,650] equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in b 2

Krizhika Developers Private Limiled

Investiment in Mcg.;lnll’p Constructions LLP 1 i
(d) In Others (at fair value through profit and loss)

6,215,689 [March 31, 2¢24: 2,399,880] units of Rs. 100 each held in MT K Resi 7,435 2,222

Developiment Fund

32,010 [March 31, 2024: 32,010] eyuity shares of Rs. 25 each fully paid-up held in 8 8

Zoronstrian Co-opeiative Dank Limited

46,824 41,656

Aggregrate amonnt of unguoted investment 46,824 41 56
Aggregrate amonnt of quoted investment snd market value thereaf - -
Azgregrate amount of impaicment invalne of investinents ~ =

-
- ——

Chart jﬂ;j‘;‘x
B
Og -~

Cre ‘:“:‘H\“-“
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Keystone Realtors Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Disclosure pursuant to Ind As 27 'Separate Financial Statement’ for investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries, joint
venture and associates:

Proportion of voting rights held by the
Name of Entity Company
Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rustamjee Realty Private Limited 100% 100%
Credence Property Developers Private Timiied 100% 100,
Nowycon Developers Private Limited 75% 73%
Heellent Realty Private Limited 100% 100%
Firestone Developers Private Limited 73% 73%
Imperial Infradevelopers Private Linited 100% 100%
Intact Builders Private Limited 1000 1000
Dynasty Infrabuilders Private Limited 00 100
Avnare Bullders Private Limiled 100% 106%
Key stone Infrastmucture Private Limited 100% 100%
Real Gem Buildtech Private Limited * 100% 100%
FPremium Build Tech LLP 75% 75%
Navabhyinlaya Nogar Developmeit Private Limited 100% 100%
Entivier Realtors Private Limited 100% 100%
Flagranti Realtors Private Limited 100% 100%
Luwcest Realtors Private Limited 58% 58%
Riverstone Education Academy Private Limited 106% 100%
Ferrum Reallors Private Limited 100% 100%
Kevhloom Realtors Private Limited 100 100%
Keysky Realtars Private Limited 100% 100%
Relwis Realtors LLP 100% 100%
Kevheights Realtors Private Limited Ut a0%
Kevhlne Realtars Private Limited 100% 1007%
Kzy spave Realtors Privale Limited go% 90%
Key Galuxy Realtors Privale Limited 100" 160%
Key Interiors Realiors Private Limited 100% 100%
Crest Property Solutions Private Limited 51% 51%
Jyotitting Construetion Private Limited 50% 50%
Kapstane Constrictions Private Limnited 5% 51%
Megaoorp Constrictions LLP 50% 50%
Kzyorbit Realtors Privale Limited qute 90%
Kc;. vihar Realtors Private Limited gu 100
Mirahile Realtors Private Limited 1007 100%
Kevsteps Reallors Private Limiited 1007 100%
Key Green Realtors Private Limited 100% 100%
Krishika Developers Privitte Limited a7% 37%
Kapstar Realty LLP 95% 94%
Kevace Realtors Private Limited 1007 1007%
Rustamjee Scaview Realtors Private Limited 1007 1007%
Kevmiorvel Realtors Privale Limited 1007 100%
Keyiriajestic Realtors Private Limited 100% 1007
Eevmont Realtors Private Limited 51% 5i%
Oceanhoiies Reallors Private Limiled 100% 1007
Keyineadows Realtoos Private Limited Q0¥ 1007
Redgum Reallors Private Limited 51% 51%
Ajmera Luxe Realty Private Limited 507 50%
Key Fortune Relators Private Limited (refer nete 56) 0% 100%
Keycarth Realtors Private Limited 100% =
Keyedge Realtors Private Limited 100% -
Eeysheller Realtors Privale Limited 100% -
Kevbwestonw Reallors Private Limiled 1007 -
Keypalm Realtors Privale Limited 1007 -
Keyelile Realtors Private Limited 100% - i
Keyugua Reallors Private Limited 100% =
Kerestella Realtors Privale Limited 100% -
Ronstong Reallors Private Limited 1007 -
Keylionna Realtors Privats Limited 1w00% 2
Keymarrisa Reallors Private Limited 100% = O.,e
Keymontana Realtors Private Limited 100% 1= 5
Keyolivia Reallors Private Linited 1007 \-.: \
Keyevita Realtors Privale Limiled 100% =
Rostia Reallors Private Limiled 5% =

Nuote:

# All the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates mentioned shove are incorporated in India. The eountry of incorporstion is alsa their principal

place of business, They all are engaged in real estate and related businesses.

* Kingnaher Developers Private Limited is merged with Real Gem Buildtech Private Limited woef, Felwuary 28, 2025,




Keystone Realtors Linited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 8 - Other non-current financial assets

Particulars

Asat
March 31, zo25

As at
March 31, 2024

Unsecured and considered good
Lang tern deposits with bank*

372 403
Security de posils 158 179
Total 530 581

* Represents restricted deposit held as len or margin money deposits 2gainst guarantees,

Note g - Current tax assels (net)

Particulars

As at
Maich 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

Adeanre taeinduding tax dedicied 2t sonvce [net of Lax provisions of INR 12,654 (March 21

, 4,203 5,457
2a24: INR 9,328)]
Total 4,263 5.457

Noie 10 - Other non-current assels

Particulars As at ) As at N
Mazxch 31, 2025 March 312025

Considered gnod

Deposit with government aulhorities 665 428

Total 665 328

Note 11 - Inventories

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Completed saleable unils

18,544 17,542
Stoek-in-trade = 524
Construetion materials 611 73
Construction work-in-progress (refer note 58) G2,h26 bG.301
Land cast 17,260 17,903
Total 125,050 105,713

Node 1: Refer notes below Note 20 and 25 for information an inventories offered as seourity sgainst horrowings taken by the Company and refer

Nole 53 for its carrving amnount,

The amownt of inventory expected to be realised grealer than 1ycar is INR 65,540 (March 31, 2024: TNR 32,815)

Note 12 - Trade receivables

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2025

As at
Masch 31, 2024

Trade receivables from contract with Customers

Front related parties (refer note 49) - 167

From olthers 2,370 1,123

Lnss gllowanee [103) (51)
Total 2,177 1,239
Curgent portion 2177 1,259

Nom=current portion

Break-up of security details

Particulars

As at
March a1, 2025

As at
Maich 31, 2024

Trade receivables considered good — Secured

Trade receivables considered good — Unserured 2,370 1,290
Trade recelvables which have significant increase in credit fsic - -
Trade receivables — credit impairad - -
Total 2,370 1,290
Loss allowance (19%) (51)
Tolal trade receivables 2,177 1,239




Keystone Realtors Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, uniess otherwise statzd)

Note:

Nole 1: Trade receivable inelude Nil (March 31, 2024 INR 167) due from firms ar private companies in which any director is a pastner or ditector
or member,

Nate 2 1 Refer noles below Note 20 and 25 for information on trade racelvable offered as seourity against horrowings taken by the Company and
refer nate 53 for its carrying amonnt.

Trade receivables ageing Schedules as at March 31, 2025 and as at March 31, 2024;
Undisputed Trade receivables

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, zo2q
Nat Dne s58 164
Less than 6 months Qo0 423
6 months - 1ycars 312 375
1-2 year 297 27
2-3 years 27 28
Mive the 3 years 276 274
Total 2.370 1,290
Loss allowance (133) (51)
Total 2,177 1,239
Note: The Company does not have a0y -ﬂi-pll'v‘—d trade recetvables.
Note 13 - Cash and eash equivalents
Particulars Ant Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balunves with banks
In current aceonnis® 1,889 2,485
Cash on hand 38 37
Cheques on hand 850 -
Deposils with original maluvity of less than g months® 39,933 10,575
Total 42,710 12,497

FInchudes INR 127 (March 33, 2u24 : INR Nil) in evrient sccounts and INR 8 aoo (March 51, 2024: INR Nil) in deposits aceonnt will be ulilsed as
stated in the placement document for QIP {tefer noie 58],

Note 14 - Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalents

. Asat 5
Fartiontany March 31, 2025 Marcl?;f,lzoz:;
Balances with banks

In deposit accounis® 1AR 688

In dv-}_-t--i'l acconnls 0,056 4163

In cucrent and eectow acoonnls2 1,400 1,502
Tolal 11,554 6,32"2
Note:

* This repecsonls restricted deposits primarily on account of deposit held 2z lien or margin money deposits against gnarantees and barrowings.

#Note: This represcnt separate bank acconnts as per provisions of the Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016, Includes cheques on
hand INR 758 (March 31,2024 : Nil] s heequently deposited in RERA designated account,

Note 15 - Current Loans

Z As at As at
Paxticulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Loans

- To related parties (refer note 49) 99,746 112,824

- Toathers 7,378 4,428
Tuotal 107,124 118,251

.'.-.
% 2




Keystone Realtors Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statemeris as at and for the yenr ended Mazch 21, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Bieak-up of security delails

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, zo25 March 31, 2024

Louns considered good = Secnred
Lewns considered good - Unsecured

107,124 118,251
Lovans which have significant incrcase in credit risk . i
Liwing — eredit impaired = .
Total 107,124 118,251
TLoss alliwanee - =
Total loans 107,124 118,251

Lowns or Advannes in rh; natine of loans ave granted to Prownters, divectors, KMPs and the reluted parties (as defined under Companies Act,
2012, ) either severally or jointly with any ether person are as below:

Topeaf Ratrower Amount of‘loan Percentage to the
outstanding total loans

As at March 31, 2025
Proviters

Divevlors

KMPs

Reluted Parties

As at March 31, 2024
Prominters

Directars

KMPs

Related Parties

Note:

Lewms to related parties inclodes INR 22,81 (March 31, 2024: INR 17,815) is due from private companies in which any direclor is a pariner or
director or member,

113,823 L%

Note 16 - Otlier current fingncial assets

5 As at As at
Ferdeinee March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unsecured and considered good

Interest aocrued on deposils with banks 24 379
Interest receivable on dehentures of related parties (refer note 4g) 5.544 5.804
Interest recelvalle onloans to related parties (refer note 49) 7496 4,406
Iiterest receivalle fiomothers 1,859 438
Deposits with bunk remaining maturity of less than 12 months 1,589 2,500
Depaosits with land owners and housing socielfes 9 500
Becurity deposits {ncluding rolited parties) 4,317 3,425
Recelvahle from JV partners 357 fo1
Other recetvable indhuding reliled pacty (Befer not= 49) 2,199 1,404
Total 23,804 19,872

#Recetvahle fom JV partner repeesents additionad contrihution made tovards share of niet 2o0ets ta be recovered from joint venlure partner.

Note 17 - Current tax assets (net)

q Asat As 2t
Particul
Sy March 31, 2025 Maich 31, z024
Advance taxincluding tax deducted at source [net of tox provisions of INR a7 (Murch 31, 2o24: 1,248 -
INR Nil)]
Total 1,248 -
Nole 18 - Other current asscis
: As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2025 Marech 31, 2024
Unsecured and considered gocd
Advanees to Landowners and housing s £,051 5,203
Advarices for supply of gomds and ser : 2 845 3,217
Balanie with governiment authorities 610 =54
Prepaid experces (incdudes contract o st INR 1,796 (March 81, 2023 INR 3.281)) 2,497 5.973
Total 12,903 13,176
QA
\




Keystone Realtors Limited
Notes to the standalone financial stalements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Nole 19 - Equity Share capital and other equity
Note 19(a) - Equity share capilal

(i) Authorised share capital

Particulars o s
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Share capital

428,010,000 [Maich 31, 2024: 428 600,000] equity shares of TNR 10 each 42 801 42,800

420,000 [March 31, 2624: 420,000] redeemakle preference shares of INR 10 each 42 42

Total 42,843 42,842

(i) Issued, suhscribed and fully paid up

Particulars saat i
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Equilty share capital

126,026,323 [March 31, 2024: 113, 888,198] Equity shares of INR 10 each 12,603 11.38g

Total 12,603 11,389

(iii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares

The conmpauy has nne class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each sharehalder is eligible for one vule per share held. In the event of

wreholders are eligible to Tecelve the remaining acets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion

li[{-l:f}n! ion, the cql_',il!,f &1
to theic share I'u';]fﬁﬁg.

(iv) Movement in eguity share capital

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity Shares
Balance as at the beginning of the year 113,888,198 11,389 113,877,423 11,338
Add: Changes during the year (Refer Note 45 and Note 57) 12,138,125 1,214 10,775 1
Ralunce as at the end of the year 136,026,323 12,603 113,888, 198 11,289

Note: During the year, the company has received equity shace applicstion money pending allotment amountir g to INR * (3,379 number of eyuity shares).

(v) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company

% As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Partimlans Number of shares Number of shares % Holding
Bownan Irani 47,872,460 47 872,460 42.03%
Percy Chowdhry 23,036,230 23,036,230 21.02%
Chandresh Melita 23,011,230 23,016,230 21.02%
Total 95,719,920 95,744,920 84.07%
(vi) Shareholding of promoters are disclosed below:
Name of Promoters Number of shares % Total | % Changes during the
shares year
As at March 31, 2025
Thonan Irant 47872 460 37.94% -4.05%
Percy Chowdhry 23936230 18.94% -2.02%
Chiandresh Melia 23,011,230 18.07% -2.04%
As at March 31, 2024
Bownan Trani 47,872,460 42.03% 0.01%
Percy Chowidhry 23,936,230 21.02% 0.00%
Chandresh Mehia 23,936,230 21.02% 0.00%




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalnne financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19(b) - Reserves and surplus

2025

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Securities premiuin reserve 157,773 80,506
Retained earnings 54,532 45,316
Capilal reserve 1,110 1,110
General resemves 23,641 213,641
Emplayee stock aption outstanding (refer nole 45) 3.605 1,683
Tolal 240,751 152,346
(i) Securities premium reserve

. As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 80, 5a9h 80,529
Aot reveived on fesue of shares (Refer Note 45 and Note 57) 7R 867 51
Les=: Amwonnt vl ilised for shace fsue expenses (Beler Note 57) (1,728) -
Add : Erplovee stock aption everiised dicing the yeat 18 21
Clasing balance 157,773 80,596
(ii) Retained earnings
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening balance 45.516 34,230
Other l'lIII|I_IE'P|'|:‘I|.'\‘IL‘E]I'-\ - P s rEe i E OfP-‘-R‘t C—iufn}l‘i}"ﬂir‘“t benefit p‘mi‘l (129) (64)
Prafit for the year 9.345 11,150
Closing balance 54.532 45,316
(iii) Capilal reserve

i As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 1,110 1,110
Cha e _Ldul'ing the year ' =
Closing balance 1,110 1,110
(iv) General reserves

5 As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 23,641 23,641
Changes during the year = =
Closing balance 23,641 23,641
(v) Empluyce stock option outstanding

- As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, zo24
Opening balance 1,683 622
Emiployvee stock oplion expense 2,050 1,082
En'.E]u}u;e ok oplion exervised duing the year (38) (21)
Closing balance 3,695 1,683

Nature and purpose of other reserves:

Sceuritics prominm reserve

Securities premium is used to record the premium on iscue of shares, This iz viilised in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013,

Capital Reserve

Capital reserve is created out of profits or gains of a capital nature. The capital reserve is available for utilisation against capilal purpose and ace not

avaitable for distribution of dividend,

General Reserve:

The Company has transferred a portion of the net profit of the Company befoce declaring dividend to general Teserve pursuant to the earlier provisions of
Companies Act, 1956, Mandalory transfer to general Teserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Employee stack option outstanding:

The share oplions aulstanding aceount is used to recognise the graut date fair value of oplions fssued to employecs under Rustomjee Emplovee stock option

plan.




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the ycar ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 20 - Non current borrowings

Particulars Asat
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, zo24

Secured
Term loans (Refer note 25(ii))
From Banks

14,604 41,739
Trom financial institutions 4,007 10,254
Vehicle Loans (Refer note 25(iv))
Frowi Banks 1R2 304
From Others 68 134
Less : Curtent maturities of long-tenn dehits (incloded in current o rawings) - (51}
Less : Interest scorved (included in cirent horrowings) (15) (12)
Total 19,751 52,310
Refer note 25 for nalure of security and terms of repavinent.
Note 21 - Lease liabilities- Non-current
+ As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lewse Liahilities 1,885 1,968
Total 1,885 1,368
Note 22 - Trade payables - Non Current
Particulars Asat Ssat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Trade payahles
Dues to micro and small enterprices {refer note 52)
Du=s to others

556 185
Total _5=56 185

Refer No. 27 for ageing of trade payahles

Note 23 - Other non-current financial liahilities

Particulars Agot Asur
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Security deposils lowards teited premises 8 8
Carpus fund payable to s wiely 7:253 7,635
Total 7,261 7,643
Note: Movement of corpus fund payable to society towards society maintenance (net)
Corpus fund payvable to society

5 As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Beginning of the year 7:635 8,583
Add: Collections from customers n wnde dul'ing the year 204 856
Add: Returns on corpus collected 795 752
Less: Utilised/Paid during the year (1,471) (2,238)
Closing balance 7:253 '?.ﬁ§§

The Company collect corpus fund deposit from the customers. The Company has invested the corpus fund deposit in fixed deposits and any
ollier investiment sehiemes. The inlersst income / return acerued shall be first utilised for maintenance of the society, in casz of any shorifall

curpus fund deposit shall be ulilised,

Nole 24 - Non current provisions

Particul As at As at
e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for employee benefit
Gratuity (refer note 45) a04 217
Total 394 217




Keystone Realtors Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 25 - Current Borrowings

: § As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured
Dehentures (Refer note 25(i))
300 [March 31, 2024: Nil ] 12% Redesmahle nan-convertible debentires of 3,000 %

Rs 1000000/~ (refer nole 25(1))

Vehicle Loans (refer note 25(iv))

From Banks 65 -

From Others 35 =
Term loans (Refer note 25(ii(e)))

TFroan financial inslitutions = 2,164
Cash credit and overdraft facilities from banks (Refer note 25(iii)) 882 8,165
Current maturities of long term debt (Refer note 25(ii) and 25(iii)) 15 103
Unsecured loans
Loans and depasils from related parties (Refer note 25(v))

Trom related parties (refer note 43) 11,219 11,219
Total 15,216 21,856

Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings:

i) Debentures

Redeemable non-convertible dehentures (NCDs)

(1] First charge by way of equitable mortgage over Developiment Rights of the Property.

(ii) First pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation on the Escrow Account of the Project.

(11) First par-passu charge by way of hypothecation on the future Scheduled Receivables of the Project and all insurance proceeds, hath
present and fulure.

(iv) First charge on the [SRA and on all manies credited/deposited therein (in whatever form the same may be), and all investinents in respect
thereol (in whalever form the same may be).

Terms of repayment along with interest charged is as follows :
(i) the term loan is repayable in bullet payroent at the end of 36 months from date of allotment
(11) the terim loan carried interest rale of 12% p.a. payshle monthly.

ii) Terin loans from banks and other parties

(a) Term loan (TL-1) from Axis Bank Limited amounting to INR 4,553 (March 31, 2024: INR 14,900), ICICT Bank Limited
amounting to INR 10,056 (March 31, 2024: INR 17,212) and Aditya Birla Finance Limited amounting to INR 4,907 (March
31, 2024: INR 8,400) is secured against

(1) Pari Paswsu charge by way of mortgage of iminovable property Le. the units snd 3 specific units of BR in the project inciuding proportionate
undived share of land.

(1) Pari Passu charge by way of mortgage on all ollier project assets entire

() Pari Passu chiarge on cash flows including present and future receivables in the project through an escrow mechanism

(iv} Par passu charge on the developinent rights and all other project documents

(v) Pari Passu charge over Interest Service Reserve account

Terns of repayment along with interest charged is as follows :
(i) the loan is repuyable in 3.5 years quarterly installment including moratodum period of 18 months.
(11} The loan carries inlerest rate linked to Axis Bank Limited 6 months MCLR +1.25%. Effective interest rale as at March 91, 2025 is 10 70%.

(b) Term loan (TL-2) from Axis Bank Limited amounting to Nil (March 31, 2024: INR 6,418), ICICI Bank Limited amounting
to Nil (March 31, 2024: INR 3,209) and Aditya Birla Finance Limited amounting to Nil (March 31, 2024: INR 1,834) is
secured against

(1) Pard Passn charge on identified unsold units (induding receivable thereon) of the Season project with a 1.00x FACR

(11) Pari Passui charge over ISRA (2 months' interest service ahbligations)

(111) The seenrity shall be cross eollateralized with security for TL-1 (term loan-1 facility of Axis bank on Real Gem Build Teeh Put. Ltd. for
Rustimjee Crown Project), It may be noted that 60 days time is stipulated for security perfection for TL1.

Q/Q .'_




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Terms of repayment along with interest charged is as follows :
(i) the loan is repayable in 3.5 years quarterly instalment including moratoriom period of 1g months.
(1) The loan carries interest rate linked to Axis Bank Limited 6 months MCLR +0 8a%. Effective interest rale as at March 31, 2025 is 11%.

(c) Term loan from Tala Capital Housing Finance Limited amounting to Nil (March 31, 2024: INR 2,169) is secured against:

» Exclusive charge by way of registered marlgage over development rights snd FSI of project Parishram by Rustomjee situsted at Pali Hill
Road, Bandra.

= Bxclusive charge to be created on Securily Flat admeasuring 2,665 sq. ft. cat pet arcaie. 4,547 sq. ft. saleable area, immedintely upon receipt
of OC of the Praject.

» Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on all the receivables including sold, unsald, insurance receipts, development and other ciu r5es
and any cashinfiow in the redevelopiient Froject Rustumjee Pali Hill Parishram.
+ DSRA equivalent to 3 ninnths' interest on autstanding amount of the farility,

Terms of repayment along with interest charged is as follows:
Muoratorium perind of 36 months and therafter 24 equated monthly instalments commen ing [ronn the end of 27th month sinee the date of
first drawdown under the Lacility,

Rate of Interest will be Construction Finance Prime Lending Rate (CFPLR) minns 6,45% peranium on monthly redining & Noaling tate b
The present CFPLR i6 17.45% & present effective rate of interest will be 13.00% per annum on monthly reduing & floating rate hisis

iii) Cash credit and overdraft facilities

(a) The overdralt facility availed from Ax's Rank Limited amounting to INR €82 (Masch 31, 2024: INR R,n30) is sevured by sama gecurities as
that of the term loan 2s on March 31, 20235, (refer point 25(i1(2))

Interest rate is as follows:;

The facility carries interest rate linked to Axiz Rank Limited 6 months MCLR +1,25%,

{b] The cash eredit facility availed from The Zoraastrian Co-operative Rank Limited amount ing to Nil (March 31, 202.4: INR 326) is secured
agninst registered mortgage of 3 Mate belonging to the Company and 2irectors
Interest is pey able monthly @ 1100% pa.

iv) Vehicle loan

Vehicle loan amounting to INR 350 (March 31, 2024: INR 440) is secured against:

Vehiele Loan Tis taken from ICICI bank INR 57 (March 31, 2024: INR 72) and repayable in 60 monthly installment of INR 1.79 including
interest @ B A5% pa.

Vehicle Loan I is taken from HDYC bank INR 84 (March 31, 2024: INR 106) and repayable in 60 maonthly installment of INR 2.48 including
interest @ B.40% pa.

Vehicle Loan 11 s taken from Mercedez-Benz Financial Services INR 103 (March 31, 2024: INR 134) and repayalie in 48 manthly installment
of INR 3.48 including interest @ 8.27% poa.

Vehicle Loan IV is taken from Banlk of Barmda INR 107 (Marchi 31, 2024 INR 128} and repayable in 6o monthly installment of INR 2 68
incliding interest @ R 85% p s,

These lnans are seeured by undedying assets against which these loans have been oltained, refer note 53.

v) Unseceured Loans and advances from related parties and others

Loan from related parties are interest free.

The carrying amounts of financial and non-financial assets pledged as security for current and non-current horrowings are disclnsed in note
as.

For Liahilitieg from financing activitiee refer note 47.

Note 26 - Lease liahilities- Current

Particulars Asat Asat
ArLiasars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lease Liahilities 544 273
Total 544 273

Note 27 - Trade payables- Current
Asat As at

Partieulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Trade payahles

Due to related party (refer note 4g) 9,736 68
Dues to micro and small enterprises (refer nole 52) 421 336
Duies to others 27,410 26,512
Tatal 37,567 27,316




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes:

Current and non-current trade payable ageing Schedules for the year ended March 31, 2025 and year ended March 31,

2024:

Outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2025 from the due date of payment

Particulars MSME Others
Unibillad - 23,000
Not Due 244 2,040
Less than 1year 175 11,734
1-2 year * 280
2- 3 years L 11
Mure the 3 years 1 637
Total 421 37.702
Outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2024 from the due date of payment

Particulars MSME Others
Unhitled 28 23,100
Not Due 221 1,623
Lessthan 1ycar 85 507
1-2 year £ 61
2= years 2 [:F:1
Maore the 3 years - 1,711
Tolal 336 27,165
Noter Campany does not have any disputed trade payahles to MSME & others
Note 28 - Other current finaneial liahilities

As at Asat

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Refundahle towards cancelled units

93 145
Deposit and other charges puyable to saciety (net)* 3,720 3,831
Emiplovee benefits payable 854 1,063
Other payables (including related parties) (refer note 49) 99 520
Total 5,066 5 563
* The Company collects deposits as an sgent from the cistomers for mainteiance of the society, The unspent balance after niilisation if any,
will be refunded at the time of handing over the society.
Nole 29 - Current provisions
. As at As at
ranigies March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for employee Benefit (refer note 45)
Compessated ahsences 8as 530
Graluity 131 78
Tolal 936 614
Nole 30 - Current tax liabilities (net)
Particul Asat As at
ATTCIars March 31, zo25 March 31, 2024
Income Lax provisions [net of Advance tax including tax deducted at source of INR 5,803, 494 531
(Maich 31, 2024: INR 6,192)]
Tolal 494 531
Nole 31 - Other current liabilities
Asat As at
Partioulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advonces from eustomers (Contract Lishilities) (ine Tuding related parties) (refer note 49) 44,408 4R 024
(Refer note 1 hel w)
Statulory dues payahle 746 440
Deferred Financial Guarantee lishility an 54
Other lialiiities 1,422 1,418
Total 46,612 49,936
Nite:
1. A conlract h-ln]ﬂ'y is the ehligation to transfer gunds or services to a customer for which the company has received eonsideration (or an
amenint of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company translers grit\d:: or services to the

customer, a contract Hability is recognised when the payment is made.

Advance from customers expevied to be settled greater than 1year is INR 7,385 (Musch 31, zo2.4: INR 6,799)




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notas to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 32 - Revenue from operations

Particulars

Year ended
Mazrch 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, zo024

Revenue from Contract with Customers
Revenue from projects

54,792 100,136
Other operating income
Sale of sciap 53 69
Others 218 840
Tolal 55,063 101,045
Note 33 - Other income
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 21, 2024

Inteiestincome from financin asscls at ainortsed st
On deposits with banks

3,260 1,525
On debenlures 3.501 2,801
On intercorporate deposils B8.010 5.5%4
On Income tax relund 525 2R
Others 5] 49
Guarantee income 21 532
Dividend incame 120 -
Reversal of farcsceuble loss = 446
Rental income 87 100
Net Gain in financial assels measured at fair velue thiough profit and loss 1,558 -
Retiirn an Investinents (cefer nate 5A) - 1208
Miscellaneous income 2,714 545
Total 20,512 i2.868
Nole 34 - Construction Costs
. Year ended Year endad
Parhinlars March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Cost of land, developient rights and related expenses 24,158 2,083
Crst of material consumed 1,907 3.205
Labour and material conlractual expenses 11,82 4,538
FSI, TDR and other approval cost 12,719 8655
Other site operation expensc 4,281 4,386
Allocated expenses to the project
Finanee costs 732 1,717
Employee benelit expences 4,055 340
Other expenscs 583 499
Total 60,417 23.444
Note 34 (a)- Cost of materials consumed
Year endec Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Ruw miaterial at begining of the year az: 799
Add - Purchases 2,145 2,779
Less- Raw miaterial at end of the year (611) (373)
Total cost of materials consumed 1,907 3,205




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 35 - Purchase of stock-in-trade

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, zo25 March 31, 2024

Purchase of stock-in-trade 3 504

Total purchase of stock-in-trade - 594

Note 36 - Changes in inventories of completed saleable units, construction work- in-progress and stock-in-trade

s Year ended Year ended
Particulnrs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Crmnpleled saleable units 17,542 42,044
Stock-in-trade 504 -
Corestruelion work in progress 69,301 90,213
Land 17,903 17,903
Total (A) 105.340 150,160
Add: Change in awnership of juintly contralled entities (refer nole 55) -] 2 G838
Inventories at the end of the ycar
Comipleted saleable units 18,544 17,542
Stock-in-trade A 594
Construction work in progress 02,626 609,901
Land 17,269 17,003
Total (B) 128,439 105,340
Increase / (Decrease) in stock (B-A) 23,099 (47,508)
Note 37 - Employce benefit expenses
Particul Year ended Year ended

arscuiars March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Salaries and honus 10,851 8,902
Contrfbmlion te provident and other funds (refer note 45) 323 238
Employee stock oplion expense (refer note 45) 1,225 606
Gratuity {refer note 45) 102 59
Stafl welfare expenses 354 257

12,855 10,042
Less: Allocated to constniction enst (4.0558) (2,461)
Tolal 8,800 6,581
Note 38 - Depreciation and amortisation expense
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Deprecialinon on Property, plant and equipnient 555 254
Amortisation of Intangible assets = 3
Depreciation on Iuvestment property 41 41
Deprecialion on Right-of-use asaets 631 a2
Total 1,227 680
Note 39 - Finance costs
icul Year ended Year ended
Eqrtin B March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest
Interest and finance charges on leasz Habilities and financial Babilitiee not at fair 4,086 4,A84
valie thraugh profit or loss
Inlerest on stalutory dues 29 41
Other borrowing costs 59 156
5,074 4,881
Less: Allocated to construetion o<t (732) (1,717)
Total 4.342 3,164

Q¥
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Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 40 - Other expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advertisement and plilicity 2,924 2,888
ninimission and br g afi2 1,330
Net L. financia e measired at fair value through profit and loss - 179
Dives ing fees and eommission 71 57
Ligad and professional charges 2,533 1022
Lriss allowance on non finanelal aseets - 205
La lewance on financial assels 142 -
Bad dehis written off - {205)
Rotes and tase-s 135 187
Rent 231 272
Repairg and maintenance
Vehirles 23 17
- Others 342 302
Salee promotion 189 132
Infriation technalogy expense 862 661
Impairmient loss on financial aots 915 274
Travelling and conveyance 340 132
Carpurate social responsibility expendilure 272 248
Outsonrced Tanpower cost ab4 435
Payment to Auditors 85 83
Miscellanenus expenses 1,213 713
11,603 8,932
Other expenses allocated to construction costs (543) (499)
Total 11,020 8,433
Note 40 (a) - Delails of payment to auditors
- Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Details of payment to anditors
Asgudilors
Andit fees 50 49
Limited Review 27 27
In other l_uli»ﬂ'l.r)'
Cerlification fees 5 5
Re-imbursciment of-:-\_p-i'.q-: q a
Total 85 BL

Note: The andit fees of INR 65 lacs paid towards the Qualified Institutional Plarement has been charged to other equity as share issie

EXETISeS,

Note 40 (b) - Corporate social responsibility expenditure

Year ended Year ended
Fartivulars March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Amonnts reguired to be spent a8 per s~ction 135 of the Act 272 248
Amonnt spent during the year on
(i) Construction / acquisition of an assel - -
(1) On purpose other than (i) above 272 248
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance (excess spent) funspent brought forward 123 -
Amount required to be speat during the vear 272 248
Amonnt spent during the year 72 125
Balanee unspent and transferred to designated hank account 123 123
The amount spent on corparate social responshility expnditure are for prosmol ing education and healtheare,
The reason for umspent : Ongoing project
i




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 41- Taxation

(a) Income tax expense recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, zo25 March 31, 2024
Current tax
Current tax on profils for the year 2,031 3,426
Adjustmients relating to previous years 165 =
Total current tax expense 3,096 3,426
Deferred tax
Dectense in defeired taxasets 149 112
Increase in deferred tax Habililies 273 (180)
Total deferred tax expense / (eredits) 422 (68)
Income tax expense recognised in standalone statement of profit and lnss 2.518 3,358
Income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income
Pasticulass Year ended Year ended
March 31, zo25 March 31, 2024
Ineome tax on remeasurement of the net defined benefit obligation 43 22
Income tax credits recognised in other comprehensive income 43 22

(b) Deferred tax asscts (net)
The halance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Deferred tax assels

Difference in carrying amount of property plant and equipment and Intangihle

assels ag per tax accounts and baoks 36 .
Expenses allowahle for tax purpnses when paid fwritten of 430 531
Impact of expendilure claimed for tax purposes in the current year but expenditure 18 49
charged to the statement of profit and loss in sushequent years
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference in carrying amount of property plant and equipment and Intangible - (49)
assels as per tax aceounts and books
Income offered in statement of profit and loss but taxable in subsequent years for (327) -
income tax purprses
Deferred tax assels (net) 147 531
(Charged)/
. credited to (Charged)/ As at
Particulars April 01, 2023 profitand credited to OCI March 31, zozg
loss
Movement in deferred tax assels
Expenses allowable for tax purposes when paid/writien of 621 {112) 22 531
Impact of expenditure claimed for tax purposes in the current - 49 - 49
year but expenditure charged to the statement of profit and
loss in sushequent years
Movement in deferred tax liabilities
Difference in camrying amount of property plant and (53) 4 - (49)
equipinent and Intangible nssets as per tax accounts and
Twaioks
Impact of expendilure elaimed for tax purposes in the current (120) 126 - -

year but expenditure charged to the statement of profit and
lissin 5-1:.1--:|4uvut years

Tolal

442 67




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Movement in deferred tax assels (net)

(Charged)/
2 g As at credited to (Charged)/ Asat
Faanicuiare April 01, 2024 profit and credited to OCT March 31, 2025
loss
Movement in deferred tax assels
Difference in carrying amonnt of propecky plant and - 26 - 26
equipiment and Intangible assots as per tax accounts and
bl " I'"\S
Expenses allowable for tax purposes when paid/written of 531 (144) 43 430
Impact of expendilure claimed for tax purposes in the eurrent 49 (31) - 18
year but expenditure charged to the statement of profit and
less in susl wijuenl years
Movement in deferred tax liabilities
Difference in carrying amount of property plant and (49) 49 = -
equipment and Intangible assets as per tax accounts and
bnks
Incoime affered in staterment of profit and loss but taable in - (327) - (327)
subseguent years for income tax purposes
Total 531 (427) 43 147
(c) Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by statutory tax rates
z As at Asat

Particnlars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before tax for the year 12,868 14,509
Statutory tax rate applicable to the Company 25.17% 25.17%
Tax expense at applicable tax rate 3,239 3,652
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible / (taxable) in caleulating taxable income:

Daonations (Corporate social responsibility expenditure 70 66

Return on Investments - (304)

Impact due to difference in the tax rate of jointly conbralled enlities (3) (19)

Tax paid in respect of earlier years 165 -

Others 38 (37)
Income tax expense 3.518 3.358
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Keystone Realtors Limited
Noles to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2025
(Allamuounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 42 - Fair value measurements

Particalars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial asscls - at amortised cost
Investmient in debentures 14,742 14,742
Security deposils 2,475 3,601
Loing term deposits with hank 372 403
Trade receivahles 2,177 1244
Cash and cach equivalents 42,710 13.497
Bank halances other than cash and cash equivalents 11,554 9573
Current louns 107,124 118 251
Interest acervied on deposits with hanks 524 379
Interest receivable 14,8949 1n,fiq R
Deposits with land awn nd housing sicieties 9 509
Dieposits with bank emain ng maturity of beas than 12 months ) 1.58q 2,406
Oiher receivahle 2,199 L404
Reveivahle from JV parine 957 601
Financial assets - Fair value through Profit and Loss
Investrent in eyuity instruments of others 7343 2,230
Total financial assets 210,074 176,765
Financial Hahilities - at amortised cost
Borrowings 34,967 74,166
Trawde payahles 28,123 27,501
Security deposits lowards rented premises B
Refundable tewvards caneelled units 93 149
Carpus, Deposit and other charges pagable to society (net) 10,973 11,466
Esnployee benefits payahle f54 1,063
Other payables 399 520
Total financial liabilities 85,417 114,873

(ii) Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estin
which fair values are disclosed in the finsncia

lalemenlts.

Level 10 Level 1 hierarchy includes finaneial instruments measured using guoted prices.

wles made in determining the fair valuss of the financial instruments that are measured at amortised cost and for

Level 21 The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market {for example, traded bonds, over-the-counter dedivatives) is determined using
vatuation technigues which maximise the use of nhservahle market data and reiy as Hle as possibile on entity-specific estimates. T all significant inputs reguired to

Fsir valie an instoument are ohservable, the instrument {s included in level 2,

Level 3: If ane ar more of the significant inputs iz not based on observable market data, the instrament iz incloded in level 3.

The fair values of investment in dehentures and horrowings, security deposits, long term deposits with bank, trade payable, enrpus, security deposit towards rented

prem
values in the fair value hisvaichy doe to the inclusion of nnobservabile inputs ineluding counterparty credit risk,

(iii) Valuation process

< with original maturity of more than 12 months are ealenlated based on rash flows discounted nsing a eurrent lending rate. They are classified as level 3 faic

The finanice department of the Company includes a team that performs the valustions of Anancial assets and abilities required [ur financial teporting purposes,

including level 3 fair values,

(iv) Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised east - Level g

Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial liabilities
Borpuwings 34:967 34.967 74,166 74,166
Total financial liabilities 34,067 34,967 74,166 74,166

For Ainancials linhilities the carrying amounts are equal to the fair value as inferes! rate on financials labilities that are measured at faif value is at the prevailing
rd ‘ -

Ttk rales.




Heystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone fir ial stat ts as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in TNR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(v) Fair value of fi ial instruments measured through profit and loss

. As at March 31, 2025
Particular 3
i Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investinent in Eguity Instouments = 7.335 8
Tolal financial asscts - 7,335 8
. As at March 31, 2024
SETK Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial asscts
Tnvestment in Equily Instruments - 2,221 8
Total financial asscls - z.o21 8

Nole 43 - Financial risk management

The Company's activities expese it to a varfety of fivaovial risks namely credit risk, Hgullity risk aod markel risk The Company's foweus is to fareses the
unpt lity of finnneial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial performancs,

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of finuncial Joss to the Company if & cuslomer or counler-pacty fils to mest its contraciual abligatinng, The Company is exposed to credit rigk
from investment in debentures, loans, deposits with banks and Snancial institutions.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are generally unsecured and are derived from revenue sarned from customers, Credil risks related to receivables resulting from sale of inveniories
is manuged by reguiring customers to pay the dues biefore transfer of possession, therefure, substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect, In
case of canvellation of sales sgreement by the customer, the company shall be entitled to s=ll and transfer the premis=s to another costomer, forfeil and appropriate
into itself an amount equivalent to (a) 10% (len percent) of the Sale Consideration and (b) the actial loss ta accur on the resals of the premises to the new customer.
Histarical experience of coflecting receivables of the company is supported by low level of past default and hence the eredit risk is perceived to be low.

Other financial assets

The Company has assessed for its other financial 3esets namely loans, interest Teosivable, seeurily deposits, deposits tecoverahle from land owners and I nsing
sovieties, receivable from JV Partner, Baok halances other than cash and cash eguivalents and ather receivable as high quality, negligible credit risk. The Company
perivdivally monitors the recoverability and credit rivks of ite finaneial assols. The Company evaluates 12 month expected credit Ineees for all the financial 1ssets for

which eredit risk has nol ineveased. In case credit sk has inereased s wanlly, the Company sonsiders lifstime swvpected credit losses for the purpose of
impairment provisioning

The Company's maximum exposire to credil risk as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 iz the carrying value of each class of financial assets as disclosed in notes
7-8 and 11-16.

The mewveinient in allowance for doubtful debis, Interest recebvables snd other advances is as helows

" Asat As at
Farticilars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening halanee 51 2,681
Changes in Joss allowances: =
142 25
- (2.655)
Clasing Balance 193 51

(i) Liguidity risk
Liruidity is defined as the risk that the Com pany will not be able to sellle or mest its abligations
time maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its Snancial ohligations. The Company manag
and by having aicess to funding through an adeguate amount of commitled credit lines. In add
sEnior management.

on time or at a reasonable prive. Company’s ohiective is to, at all
Hyuidity risk by maintaining sufficient eash and cash equivalents
fan, provesses and policies related to such risks are overcoon by

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tahle summarises the maluvity profile of Company's finaneial liabilities based on contractual endiscounted payments:

Particulars Less than one year One to four years Maore than Four Tolal
years

As at March 31, 2025

Borrowings (Tncluding Inlerest) 14,686 16,114 8,625 30425
Trade pavables 37,567 556 - aR123
Becurity depesits towards rented premises = i 8 8
Refundable tosards cancelled nnfts 53 - = 93
Corpus, Deposit and other charges payable to saciety {net) 3,720 7,253 * 10,973
Leasa Lishilities 793 2,210 = 3003
Empliyes benefits p;}.ll'l]? B4 = s Br4
Onher payables 395 - = 399

58,112 26,133 8633 ) 92,878




Kevstome Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Less than oneyear Onetofouryears  More than Four Tolal
years

As at March 31, 2024
Bortowings {Tncluding Inlerest) 26,787 63,505 37 90,419
Trade pavahies 27,279 185 - 27,464
Sevarily dfi)l"‘-;]‘ lowards rented Premises - - 8 ]
Refundabile towards cancelled units 149 # - 149
Corpus, Deposit and other charges pavable to zociely (net) 3811 7,625 - 11,466
Lease Liabilities 446 1,334 346 2,136
Employes banefits payable 1,063 - - 1,063
Other payahles 520 - - 520

60,075 72,749 391 133,215

(iii) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the faic value of fiulure cash fows of a financial instrament will Toctiate be asuse of changes in market prices, Market dsk comiprisces of
two types of risk: inlerest rale risk and ewrroncy risk, Financial inslraments affected by market risk include hrrtowings and creditare for capilal expendilure.

(a) Foreign currency risk
Fureign cureency risk is the risk that the fuir valuz or fture cash Sows of an exposure will fuctiale because of chang

exin fweign exchange rates, The Coampuny is
nit matedally exposed to any foreign exchange sk & ring the reporting periods.

(b) Interest risk

Inierest rate risk is the risk that the fair value ar future cash flows of a financial instrament will fluctuste because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's exposure to risk of changes in market rate is Hmited to borrowings (excluding vehicle loanz and nen-convertible debentures) which bear floal ing inlerest
rate.

The Counpany's fixed rate barrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefare not subject to inferest rate risk as defined in Tnd AS 107, since neither the
carrying amount nor the foture cash floss will Ductuate becanse of a change in markst intorest rates.

The Company manages interest rate risk by having a balanced partfolio of fixed and variahle rate haorrowings. The exposure of the Company's horrowing to intere=st
rate clunges at the end of the reporting period iz as fllows:

(a) Interest rate exposure

Particulars Asat ANt

3 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Varinhle rate borruwing 20,398 62,507
Total 20,398 62,507
(b) Sensitivity

Frofit or lose is sensilive to higher / lower interest expense as a result of changes in interest rates. A 100 hasis point incrvase or devrease is used whea reporting
inlerest vate risk internally to key management personnal and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates, With all
other varialiles held ronstant, the Company's profit before tax will be impacted by a change in interest rate as follows:

Increase/(decrense) in profit belore tax
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Incieass in interest rate by 100 hasis poinis (100 bps) (z04) (625)
Decresseininterest rale by 100 hasis p 204 625

Note 44 - Capital Manage ment

For the purpose of the Company's capital managemient, capital includes issued equity capiial and all other equity reserves attribulable to the equily holders of the
Parent, non-controlling interast and horrowings (including inlersst acerved and lease Habitiy),

The Company aims to manage its capitsl efficiently so as to saleguard its ahility to continue as a going concern and to oplimise returns for it's shareholders. The
capital structure of the Company is based on management's judgment of the apperopriste halance of key elements in arder to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs,

The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of debt to squity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company.

The Company considers the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manages the capilal structure in light of changes in economiic conditions and the risk
charadcieristics of the nnderlying assets,

The Company's aim is to translate profitable growih to superior cash generation through efficient capital managemenl. The Company's policy is to maintain a stable
and strong eapital strociure wilh a foeus on tolsl squity 50 23 to maintain investor, ereditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth af
its business, The Company will take appropriaie steps in arder to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capilal structure.

en




Keystone Bealtors Limited

Noles to the siandalone £nancial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounits in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

The table below summariocs the c2pital, dedt and debt 4o squity ratio of the Crmpany,

. Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Equity shure capital 12,603 11,389
Other equily 240,751 152.3.16
Total equity (A) 2532.954 163,735
Dorrowings Gnonding intesest accried and lease Hahilities) 37396 75,807
Total Debt (B) 37,306 75,807
Debt to equity ratio {B/A) 0.15 0.46
The Crampany was in complinnee with all of its debt covenants for horrowings 25 at each of the 2ates mentioned sbuve,

Note 45 - Employee benefit obligations

Particulars Al Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 224

Non-current

Cratuily 394 217

Current

Contiipeinn Diaeii s Burg 16

Gralulty 13 -8

Total 1,430 831

(i)Leave ohligations

The leave ohligations cover the Company's liability for casual, sick and sarned leave are hased on Acturial valugtion.

The smiount of the provision of INR 805 (March 31, 2024 : INR 536) is presented as current, sinee the Compuny does not have an oncoaditional dght to defie
settlemment for any of these ohligations. However, hased on past experience, the Company does nat expect all employees to taks the full amonnt of acerued leave or

requlie paymnont within the next 12 months, The following amionnts reflect leave that is nol expected to be taken or paid within the next 12 manths,

As at As al
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Leave abligations el epected to be settled within next 12 months B 387

Particulare

(ii) Defined eontribution plans

The Company has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fand in India for emplorvess at the rate of 12% of besic sslary as per
regulatinns. The contributions are made to registered provident fond sdministered by the government. The ohligation of the Coinpany is Bmited to the smount
contrituted and it bas ne further cantractual nor any constructive obligation. During the year, the Company has recognised INR 323 (March 31, 2024: INR 248) in
the standalome statemnent of profit and Inss or constriction work-in-progress.

(iii) Post employment oblizalions

Gratuity

The O

are aligitle fo

for gratuity fur employess in India as per the Paymient of Graluily Act, 1973, Emplovees whe are in conlinuous service for a perind of 5 yuars
ty. The amount of gratuity payable on refiterment lermiination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed propartionalely
for 15 duys 2alary mulliplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plar is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised finds in
India. The Company does net fully fond the Hability and maintains 2 target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected
grat ':.;.' pazTaenls,

Balance Sheet Amounts - Gratuity

The smounts revognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit abligation over the year are as Sflows:

Particulars Ph‘::ﬁ;:::’f of  Fair V:l:::;;fplan Netamount

As at April o1, 2023 457 262 195
Current servica cosl 45 - 45
Pust service cost 18 20 (2j
Inie apeiise Gineame) 35 1g 16
Total amount reengnised in profit and loss a8 39 5
Remeasursments

Relurn on plun assets, excluding amonat incloded in interest expense/ {income) - 1) 1
(Fain Jfloss froem change in deroe graphic assumplions - - -
(Cain )/0ess Goin chasge in @nancial assumptions 1t - 11
Experience {gains}luescs 74 = 74
Total ameunt Tecogrised in othec couiprefiensive income 85 (1} b}
Em plover conteibutions - 45 (45)

Denelit pavm (25) {25}

As at March 21, 2024 615 320 205




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Farticalas Present valueof  Fair value of plan T
ohbligation assels
As at April o1, 2024 615 320 205
Curient setvice cnsl 78 - 78
Wility Transferzed Out/ Divestments 18 16 2
Iniercsl expanse {income) 45 23 S
Tolal amount recognised in profit and loss 141 39 102
Ramvasurements
Return on plan assels, encluding amoont included in interest expense/ {income) - (6] 6
(Gain )/loss fram change in demographic sssumplions g - B
(Cain Jlows from change in finanelal sssumptions 23 - 23
Experience {gains)/losses 135 = 135
Total amountrecognised in other comprehensive income 166 (6) 172
Emplover enotribulions - 44 (44)
Benefit pavments (25) (25) -
As at March 31, 2025 897 372 525
The net Hability disclosed above relating to funded and unfunded plans is as below:

4 Asat As at
Fartibyines March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present valua af funded shligations (By7) (615}
Fairvalue of plan assets 72 320
Deficit of funded plan (525) (295)
Deficit of graluity plan (525) (295)
Significant estimates: acluarial assumptions
The significant actusrial assumplions were as follows:

. Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Disenunt rate 6.59% 7.15%
Employes turnover 15.34% 17.00%
Salary gruwth rate JLIGTVEY 10.00%
Eeturn on plan zescls 6567 7.18%
Muorality rate Indian acoured lives mortality 20i2-14 (Urban)

(iv) Sensitivity analysis
The sensilivity of the defined benefit abligation to changes in the weightsd principal assumptions by 1% e 2z below:
Imipact on defined benefit obligation
Particulars Increase in asswmplions Decrease in assumptions
Asat As at Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rule (35) (23) Az 25
Salary growth rate 2g 18 (28) (18)
Employee turnover (6) (3) 7 3

The atwve sensitivity analysis is bosed on a change in an sssumption while helding all other assumptio stant_In practive, this is unlikely to occur, and changes
in sume of the assumplioms may be correlaled. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit abligation to significant acluarial assumptinns the same
methiod (present valne of the defined benefit ohligation caleulated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has hean applied as when
calenlating the defined benefit liability recognised in the halance sheet,

The methads and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did nat changs compared to the prinr period.

(v} The major calegories of plan assels are as follows:

The plan assct Tor the fonded gratuily plan is sdministered by Life Tnsurance Carparation of India ('LIC') as per the investment paliern stipulated for Pensivn and
Group Schemes fiund hy Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority regulalions Le. 100% of plan assels are invested in insurer mansged fiind, Quoled price
of the samz is not available inactive markst,

(vi) Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to & number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below :

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount tale which is linked to the government securities rate will increass the present value of the liability requiring higher
provision. A fall in the disconnt cate generally increases the mark to market value of the swsets depending an the duration of asset,

Salary risk: The pro<eut value of the defined benefit plan lahility is caloulated by tefierence to the fulure salarics of members. As such, an inecesse in the salury of
the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's lahiti, o ~




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2025

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Investment risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan Habity is caloulated using a discount rate which is delermined by reference to market yields al the

end of the reporting perind on government bonds, If the return on plan asset is below this tate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has 4
relatively halanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments,

Assetliability matching risk (ALM risk): The plsn facos the ALM risk as to the matehing cash Bow, Since the plan is invested in lives of rule 103 of Incine Tax
F_ll]b-i:‘ 1‘:16'2, ﬂl: B -i'—"":i"}-' T liiess AlM ﬁ‘k )

Mortality risk: Since the beaefits nnder the plan is s payabile for life time and payabie ll retirement age only, plan does nol have any longevity tisk,
Concentration risk: Plan is having a concentiation rick as all the aseels are invested with the insurance Crim

Although prohability of this is very less as insurance eompanies have to follow regululory guidelines,

pany and a defanit will wipe oul all the aeats

(vii) Defined benefit liahility and emplos er contributions
Expected contributions to past-employment benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2y25 ie INR 131 (March 31, 2024 : INR 74).

The weighted sverage duration of the defined benefit obligation is 6 years. The expected maturity analysis of undiscountad gratuity is as follows:

Projected benefits payahble in future years from the date of reporting Mu—c:’;:,l 2025 Marc‘:s;:,tzou

15t follovwing yoar 138 124
2nd fellowing vear 106 8o
grd following year 112 77
4th fallnwing year 119 74
sth fallowing year 135 77
Sum of years 6 to 10 349 244
Sum of years 11 and ahove 323 195

(vii) Employce stock option plan

The establishment of the Rustomjre Employes Stock Option Plan 2022 was approved by the Keystone Realtors Limited Shareholders on 11th May 2oz, Under the
plan, in respect to Tranche 1 participants are grantesd options which vest at 25% =ach year over the perind of four years of service fioim the grant date, in respect to
Tranche 2 partivipants are granted options which vest at 50% in year 1 and 25% each in year 2 and 3 over the perind of three years of service from the gront date, in
respect to Tranche 3 participants ate granted options which vest at 50% each year over the period of twa years of service from the grant date , and in respect to
Tranche 4 participants are granted aptions which vest 3t 100% over the period of one year of service from the grantdale . Partivipation in the plan is at the Keysione
Realtors Limited Board's discreiion and no individual has & contractual right ta participats in the plan or to receive any guaranteed benefits,

Once vestad, the options temaln exercisable for a perind of four years, When exercisable, each aplion i convertible into ane equily share.

Set aut below iz 2 summary of options granted under the plan:

3i-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Particulars Average excrcise |Number of oplions| Average exercise | Number of options
price per share price per share
option (INR in oplion (INR in
ahsolute) ahsolute)
Opening halance 480 787750 480 588 o000
ranted during the year 10 154,860 480 1R 500
Transfer-ins from group company 486 6R 200 480 31,600
Excercised during the year 5353 (12,479) 480 [®,p50]
Forfeited during the year 4R0 (R za0) 480 (a,300)
Closing balance 408 989,981 480 287,750
Share aptions aulstanding ot the end of the year have the following expiny dale and exercise prices:
Grant date Vesting date Exercise price | Share options as at Fair value of
(INR in aghsolute) | March 31, 2025 option (INR in
ahsolute)
Grant-1 Di-08-zo22 1-Ang-23 480 159,975 191
Grant -1 01-0B-2022 1-Aug-og 4R0 159,975 221
Granl -1 01-08-2022 1-Aug-25 4R0 150.075 247
Grant -1 D1-08-2022 1-Aug-26 480 150,675 272
Grant -2 18-10-2023 18-Oet-24 480 94,300 244
Granl -2 18-10-2023 18-Oet-25 480 49,6050 276
Grant-2 18-10-2023 18-0et-26 480 40,650 304
Grant -3 01-08-2024 1-Ang-25 10 53,918 710
Grant -4 10-00-20324 19-8op-25 10 07,643 6R7

Slockaptions exercisshle as at March 31, 2025 ie 419,250 with Weightad average remaining contractual life of aptions sulstanding at end of period iz 3.05..
Weighted aversge remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period in 4.04. e 3

L
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Naotes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All ameunts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise statad)

Fairvalue of options granted

The nwulel inpats for options granted during the year ended March 31, 2025 fncludes:
&) Vested options are exciclsable for a perind of four years after vesting.

b} exervise price: INR 480 (in absolute)

e) grant dale: Angust 01, 2023

d) shure price at grant date: INR 499 24 (in 2heolute)

) expected price volatility of the company's thares: 43%

f} Dividend viald: 0%

g) risk-free interest rale: 6.05% to 7.27%

a) Vested aplions are excrcisable for a perind of thies years sfter vonting.
b} exeivise prive: INR 480 (0 alsoluts)

c)grant date: Oetoher 18, 2uz3

d) shave price at grant date: INR 562.05 [in absolute)

&) expected price volatifity af the company’s shares: 43%

f) Dividend ¥ield: 0%

g) risk-free interest rale: 7.45% to 7.49%

Grant -3

a} For ome emplosec - Tolal vesting perind shall be 2 years from the date of grant, Vesting pallern in 50% in Year 1and 50% in Year 2,
For Cthers - 100% options shall vestin Year 1.

b} ewervise prive: INR 10 (in ahsolute)

¢} gront dote: August 01, 2024

d) shure prive at gront dale: INR 717.97 (in absolute)

&) enpecled price volatility of the company’s shares: 38%

) Dividend yield: 0%

g) risk-free inlerest rale 6.79%

a) Vested oplions are exercisable in a yoars after vesting.
b) exervise price: INR 10 (in shsolule)

¢} grant date: Seplember 19, 2024

d) share price at grant date: INR 605 42 (in absolute)

&) expected price volalility of the company's shares: 38%
) Dividend yield: 0%

) risk-frae inlerast rale: 6.94% to 6.95%

The expected prics volutility is based on the historic volatitiny (hased on the remaining life of the options). adjusted for any expecled changes to fuluce volatility due
to publicly available information.

Note 46 - Segment Reporting

The Doard of directors (BOD) is the Company's chief aperating decision-maker. Management has determined the operating segments based on the information
teviewsd by the BOD for the purposes of allovaling resources and assessing performance. Presently, the Company is engaged in only one segment viz Beal estate
and allied aclivities' and there is no separate reportable sogment as per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments.

Enltity wide disclosnre

(a) Information aboul product and s=cvices - The Company opsiates iz a single calegory viz Real salate and allied aclivities
(b) Informiation in vespect of geographical area - The Campany has aperatinons within India

(e} Information shout major coslomer - Nene of the customer contribule to more than 10% of toie] tevenie of the Company.

Non-cutient ssscls excluding financial assets, cucrent tax assets and deforred tax ssscts amounting to INR 7211 (March 31, 2024: INR 5,221) are lncated entirely in
Tndkia.
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Nole 47 - Liabilities from financing activities

Partienlars iy RARE
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Borpuwings (incliding imerest aecrued and beose Habfliy) 37,396 75,807
Net Debt 7,396 75,807
Borruwings (including interest accrued and lease liability)
< Asat As at
Particul
aisiabrsiecs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening Balance 75,807 45,797
Borrowings taken 5,866 72,436
{45 097) 24,943}
1,271 1,315
lities pepaid Gincluding interest) 751} {aR3)
pense reoorded in profit and loes 5074 4,88
Inlerest paidin cash {4,772} (a,734)
Other non-cash movements
Net bortowing reduced on merger of Tiwcals Realtors Privale Limiled - (19,072)
Closing Balance 37,396 75,807
Note 48 - Earnings per share
£ Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) Basic

ofit for the year
ghted average number of equity shares cutstanding

Earnings per Equity shares (Basic)

(b) Diluted
Profil for the year
Weighled average number of equily shares oulstanding

Add: Weighted average number of potential shares on aceount of Employee stock option plan
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the purpose of diluted EPS

Earnings per Equity shares (Diluted)
Neminal value gt equily share (INR)

9.345
124,156,147
753

9,245
124,156,147
1,284,845
125,440,092
745

10

11,150
113,880 fg
9R0

11,150
113,880,615
Jorzqn
114,277,856
9.77

10
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Naole 49 - Related party transsctions

a) Name of related parties and nature of relationship:
i) Where contral exists

Svhsidiaries:
Credence Propeity Developers Private Limited
Nouveau Developers Private Limited
Xeellent Realty Private Limited
Dymasty Infrabuilders Private Limitad
Firestone Develapers Privale Limited
Rustomjes Realty Private Limit=d
Amazz Bullders Privale Limiled
Intact Builders Privale Limited 7 *

Navabhyudaya Nagar Developmenl Privale Limited

Eeystonz Infrastructuce Privale Limited

Kingmaker Developers Private Limitad {upte Febmary 28, 2025)

Imperial Infradevelopers Private Limited

Enticier Realtars Private lmited

Flagranti Realtors Private Limited

Laiewat Bealtors Private Limited

Ferrum Realtors Private Limited

Koy bloom Realtors Private Limlted

Erysky Realtors Private Limited

Crest Propery Solutions Private Limited

Riverstone Educalion Arademy Private Limited

Ezvblue Realtors Private Limitad

Kevheights Realtors Private Limted

Ksyspace Realtors Private Limited

Koy Galaxy Realtors Private Limited

Ery Inferiors Realiors Private Limited

Kzysteps Realtors Private Limited

Miralile Realtors Private Limited

Koy Green Realtors Private Limited

Keporhit Bealtors Private Limited

Keyvihar Realtors Private Limited

Keymarvel Reallors Privale Limited

Ezymajestic Realtors Privale Limited

Kzymont Realtors Privale Limited

Ovcean Homes Realtors Private Limitad

Keymeadows Realtors Private Limited

Rustomjee Seaview Realtors Private Limiled

Eeyace Realtors Privale Limited

Real Gem Buildtech Private Limited

MT K Kapital Private Limitad

Kezy Fortune Relators Private Limited {we £ January 12, 2024 upte March 25, 2025)

Keyearth Realtors Private Limited (we f. May 06, 2024}

Ezysheller Reallors Private Limited (we f April 28, 2024)

Eeyaqua Realtors Private Limited (w.e £ June o5, 2024)

Remstone Reallors Private Limited {(we f January 10, 2025)

Egyolivia Realtors Privale Limited (w.e f June 12, zu24)

Keyevita Realtors Privale Limited (we £ January 14, 2025)

Limited Liahility Partnership
Premium Bullfiech LLP

Kapstar Realty LLP

Rebuis Realtoas LLP

(ii) Other Related Parties with whem transactions have taken place during the year / closing balances existed
atthe year-end:
Key management personnel:
Mr. Boman Irani - Managing Director
Mr. Chandresh Mehls - Directar
Mt. Percy Chowalhry - Director
Mr. Sajal Gupta - CFO

Realtives of key management personnel:
Mrs. Amnavaz § Chowdhry

Joint Ventures :

Eapstone Constructions Private Limited

Redgum Eealtors Private Limited (we f January o4, 2024)
Ajmera Luve Realty Privale Limited (we f Janvary 17, 2024)
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Associales
Megacorp Constructions LLP
Krishika Developers Privale Limitad

Entities in which Key Management pers 1 exercise significant influence :
Sweely Property Developers Privale Limited

Dreamz Dwellers LLP

Partum Realtors Private Limited

Rustomjee Cambridge Internationa Schoal
Sanguinily Realty Private Limited

Bustomjee Knnwledge City Private Limited

Parsn Builtwell Private Limited

Pustom Irani Foundation

Chandresh Mehta Family Trust

Rustomjes Academy For Global Career Privale Limited

(ii1) Non executive director and independent director with whom transactions have taken place during the year::
Mr. Ramesh Taitvwala = Independent Directar
Mr, Ratiel Divan - Independent Disectar
Ms. Seema Mohapatra - Independent Director

11
a) Key managcment personnel eormpensation
J Year ended Year ended
Particul
g March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Short-term e ployee benefils* 1873 1,958
Total 1,873 1,958

* As the lishilities for graluily and compensaled shusnces are provided on acturial basis for the company as a whole, the amounts perlaining to key
management persanmel are not includad,

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has granted 18,180 ESOP (March 31, 2824 ; 27,000 ESOF) to key managemenl personnel,
b) Transactions during the vear

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars Relation March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
1|Loan and Advance given
Flagranti Realtors Private Limited Subsidiaries 50f -
Dynasty Infrabwilders Private Limit=d Bubsidiaries 50 4,578
Enticier Realtors Privale Limiled Bubsidiaries 173 20
Eeavheights Realiors Private Limiled Subsidiaries - 1,786
Ajmera Luxe Realty Private Limited Joint venture 1,783 428
Imperial Infradevelupers Private Limiled |Subsidiarias Gigaz 8 .h51
Keellenl Realty Private Limited Subsidiaries aAA 46
Eeyspace Reallovs Private Limited Subsidiaries 399 2,492
Crean Homes Realiors Private Limiled (Subaidiaries e -
Navalihyudaya Nagar Development Peivate Limited Subsidiaries 428 1
Nouyead Developeis Privale Limited Subsidiaries 15 40
Ferrum Realtors Private Limiled Subsidiaries 50 103
Keysky Reallors Privale Limited Sahsidiaries 6,422 2 R0y
Kevblue Realtors Private Limited Subsidiaries 3,742 2,470
Rustomjee Seaview Realtors Private Limiled Subsidiaries " ]
Firestone Developers Privale Limited Subsidiaries 36 43
Kevstone Infrastructure Private Limited Sulsidiaries 5,830 1,B65
Reliis Realtors LLP Limited Liahility Pactnership 3 5
Keyshelter Realiors Private Limited Subsidiaries * -
Eeyrarth Realtors Private Timited Subsidiaries gs8 -
Key Galaxy Realtors Private Limited Subsidiaries 125 57
Keyaqua Pealtors Privale Limited Subsidiaries * -
Dreamz Dwellers LLP Relative{s)/ KMP/ Entily - 29
Rral Gem Buildiech Private Limited {Bubwidinries 4,075 73,962
Mirahile Realiors Private Limited Subsidiaries 221
Keymeadows Realtors Private Limited |Subsidisries 8,378 a8
Riverstone Education Academy Private Limited Subsidiaries 2 20
Key Interiors Reallors Private Limited Subsidiaries 131 95
Keyorbit Reallvrs Privale Limiled Suhsidiaries 221 2,654
Kingmaker Developers Private Limited Subsidiaries ~ 16,818
Keyvihar Reallors Private Limiled Subsidiaries 1,526 35
Koymarvel Realtore Private Limiled Subsidinries 1,011 LO07
Keymajestic Reallors Private Limited Subsidiaries L ¥
Kevmonl Realtors Private Limiled Subwidiaries 150 75
Kapstar Realty LLP Limited Liability Parinership - *
Ky hloom Reallors Privale Limited Subsidiaries 2,150 2
Redgum Rezltors Private Limited Joint venture 2,601 1,475
Key Fortune Relators Private Linited Rulwidiaries 68 16
Kaeysteps Realtors Private Limited Subsidiaries 100 -
Keyace Realtors Privale Liniled Subsidiaries 27 -
Keyulivia Realtors Private Limited Subsidiaries 50 —
Keyevita Reallors Privale Limited Subsidiaries 20 b= =
Romstong Realiors Private Limited Subsidiaries 1 = |+




Keystone Realtors Limited

Noles to financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Relation SeAr anced e TN
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
2|Loan and Advance repaid
Cresdence Property Developers Private Limited Subsidiaries - 473
Dymasty Infrabuflders Private Limited Bubsidiaries 2,603 3,627
Firestome Developers Private Limited Subsidiaries 6 -
Intact Builders Private Limited Subsidiaries 20 12
Imiperial Infradevelopers Private Limited Subsidiaries 05 1,410
Enlicier Realinors Private Limited Subsidiaries 4 -
Ineeat Realtors Private Limitsd Subsidiaries 43 1,800
Ferrum Realtors Private Limited Subsidiaries 750 103
Kiysky Realtors Privale Limited Sulsidiaries 3.935 120
Mirahile Reallors Privale Limited Bubsidiaries 61 -
Nuuveau Developers Privale Limited Rubsidinries - 25
Kewhelghte Realtars Private Limited Subsidiaries 1,795 75
Ezy Galaxy Realtors Private Limited Bubsidiaries 21 5
Kzystone Infrasiructure Privatas Limited Subsidiaries 5767 4,245
Key Interiors Bealtors Privaie Limited Subsidizries 176 150
Sweely Property Developers Private Limited Relative(s)/ KMP/ Eutily 256 -
Dreamz Dawellers LLP Belativels)f KMB/ Eniity - 29
Kingmaker Developers Private Limitad Subsidiaries - 18
Flagranti Realtors Privale Limiled Bubsidiaries = 5
Keyvihiar Realtors Private Limited Subsidiaries 661 =
Keyspace Reallors Privals Limited Suhsidiaries 468 2,684
Kevblue Realtors Privale Limiled Subsidiaries 925 300
Keymarvel Reallors Private Limiled Bubaidiaries 595 1,003
Eeymont Realtors Privale Limited Subsidiaries 35 &7
Real Gem Buildlech Private Limitad |Subsidiaries 34,074 18 817
Eeyorbit Realtors Private Limit=d Subsidiaries 592 2,572
Premium Bulldtech LLP Limiled Lizbility Parinership - 13
Eey Green Realtors Private Limited Subsidiarics ® 10
Riverstone Bdueatiom Academy Private Limiled Subsidiaries - 360
Xeellent Realty Private Limited Subsidiaries 173 5
Keysteps Realtors Privale Limited Subsidiaries - -
Redgum Realtors Private Limited Joint venlure 1,700 -
Nevabihyudaya Nagar Development Private Limited Suhsidiaries 420 -
Kapstar Realty LLP Limited Liahility Parinership 200 -
Kaymeadows Realtors Privale Limiled SubsiMaries 7,587 -
3|Loans and deposils taken
Rustomjee Realty Privale Limited Subsidiaries 2,735 -
Keyspace Realtors Privale Limited Subsidiaries 131 -
4|Loans and deposits repaid
Sanguinity Realty Private Limilad Relativels)/ KMP/ Entily - L350
Rustomjee Realty Private Limited Subsidiaries 2,735 8oz
Keyspace Realtors Privale Timited Subsidiaries 131 -
5|8ale of flat
Chandresh Mehta Femily Trust Relulivels)/ KMP/ Entity - 445
Mr. Sajal Gupla Key management personnel 1] -
6|Rent income
Parsn Builtwell Private Limited Relative(s)/ EMP/ Entily 5 5
Rustomjee Cambridge Inlernational School Relativels)/ KMF/ Eolily 73 8g
7|Interestincome
Imperial Infradevelopers Private Limited Subsidiaries 3,193 1,008
Luceat Realtors Private Limited Subwidiaries 3 261
Real Gem Bulldiech Privale Limited Subsidiaries 4,151 3,086
Keyheights Realtors Private Limited Bubsidiaries 74 63
Keyspace Realtors Private Limited Subsidiaries 22 17
Keyarhit Realtors Private Limited Subsidinries 7 74
Kapstone Constructions Private Limited Joint venture 2,001 2,001
Riverstone Education Academy Private Limited Subsidiaries 90 126
Dreamz Dhwellers LLP Relative{s)/ EMP/ Entity - 1
Keyvihar Realtors Privale Limited Subsidiaries 21 "
Kezymeadnws Realtors Privale Limiled Subsidiaries 705 =
8| Purchase of Land
Mr. Boman Irani Eey manageient personnel 558 -
Mr. Percy Chowdhry Eey management personmnel 4,024 -
Mrz, Arnavaz § Chowdhry Relativels)/) KMB/ Entity 4,518 .
{2y b
1 | (;V'\
L




Keystone Reallors Limited

Notes to financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars it Year ended Year ended
March g1, zo25 March 31, 2024
9 Inlerest expense
Sanguinily Realty Private Limited Relativels)/ EMP/ Entity . 63
10/ Legal & professional expenses - License Fees
Mr. Boman Iram Koy management persannel 493 =
11|Legal & professional expenses - License Fecs (Prepaid)
Mr. Renvan Irani Koy managemen! personnal b5 <
12 Guarantees taken
Dymasty Infralwilders Private Limilad Subsidiarics 13,500 =
13| Investment in debentures & Preference Shares during the
yeur
Crezt Property Solutines Private Limited Subsidiaries - 57
14{Security deposits given towards rented premises
Rustomiee Enowledge City Private Limited Relativels) ! KMP/ Enlity = 104
15| Outsourced manpower cost
Crest Properly Solutions Privale Limited Subsidiaries 237 Byq
16! Security charges
Crest Property Solutions Privale Limited Subsidiaries - 10
17| Reimbur t of exp paid
Mr. Boman Trsni Kry management personnal 6 8
Mr. Percy Chowdhry Key management personnel 5 25
Mr. Chamdrash Mehta Kry manngement personnel - 13
Cresl Property Solitions Private Limited Subsiaries - 2
Rustomjee Realty Private Lisited Subsidiaries - "
Keyvheights Reallors Private Limited SBubsidiaries =
181 Salary Cost Allocation
Luceat Realtors Private Limiled Subsidiaties 216 216
Dynaaty Infrahuilders Private Limiled Subsidiariss 162 31
Ferrum Realtors Private Limited Subsidiaries 80 =
Keysky Bealtors Private Limited 100 -
Keyspace Realtors Private Limitsd Subsidiaries 104 5
19 Corporate social responsibility expendilure
Fustom Irani Foundation Relative(s)/ KMP/ Enlity 5 =
20! Guarantces given
Keyspace Realtons Private Limited Subsidiaries 12,500 -
Dymasty Infrabullders Private Limiled Subsidiaries - 7,000
Kapstone Constructions Private Timiled Joint ventuie 15,300 "
Redgum Realtors Piivale Limited Joint venbuge . 3,500
Eeyarbit Realtors Privale Limiled Subsidiaries Rgan =
Keshlue Reallews Private Limited Subsidiaries 7,500 =
21| Employee stock option
Kapstone Construetions Prvate Limited Joint venlige 459 224
Krystone Infrasiruclure Private Limiteds Subsidiaries fas) 48
Kingmaker Developers Private Limited s Subsidiaries = (91}
Luceat Realtors Privale Limited Subsidiaries 29 29
Crest Propecty Solutions Private Limited Subsiliaries a 12
Key [nleriore Realtors Privale Limiled Subsidiaries 4 o
Real Gem Buildtech Privaie Limiled Subsidiaries 265 228
MT K Kapilal Privale Limileds Subsidiaries (4) 5
Keyblue Realtors Private Limited Subsidiaries 52 '
Damasty Infratilders Private Limiled Subsidiaries b i -
#Reversal on aceonnt of employees left during the year
22 Reimbursement of expenses received
Credence Froperty Developers Privale Limited Subsidiaries 32 59
Dynasty Infrabullders Privale Limiled Bubsidiaries 272 43
Kapstone Comstructions Privale Limited Joint venlure = 161
Keystone Infrastructure Private Limited Subsidiaries 73 55
Luceat Realtors Private Limited Subsidiarias 101 53
Ferrum Resliors Private Limiled Subsidiaries 67 16
Koyaky Reallors Private Limiled Buhsidiaries 51 14
Kevhlue Realtors Private Limited Subsidiaries 25 26
Feal Cem Boildtech Private Limiled Subsidiaries 817 251
Rustomjee Roalty Privale Limited Subsidiariss 4a *
Heellenl Realty Privale Limited Subwidiaries 264 -
Fryspace Reallurs Povate Limiled Subsidisries
Keyurhiit BEealtors Private Limited Subsidiaries




Key stane Realtors Limited

Notes to financial slatements as of and for the year ended Mar

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stuted)

=

(=

%]

<131, 2025 (Continued)

Particulars

Relation

Year ended
March g1, 2025

Year ended
March g1, 2024

Bentexpeines
Ruestin jee Krvded go City Piivte Timited

Advances from enstomers
Imiperiad Infi

vt rs Privale Bin ited

Relitivel )/ KMP/ Entity

|__\l|‘|r\-|1l-r' &S

316

Flies

Intact Buildeis ¥ ]
Keishika Developiers Privide Limited
Luveat Bealtras Priyate i
Nuvabl AN WAL Do
Nunvesn Desvelopers Iy
XeeHeyt Really Prl
Enlivier Beultors Ped
K. ".:.' Bealtors Pk b
Key Coluny Beoliois Private Limiled
Keyhieights Bealiors Private T4
Keyopoce Realloes Peivata Lin
i€ Real

n

nt Private Finied

ivited

tars Privale Limited

Kingmaler Dy
ty Propeuy Dy wis Private Limiled
K& Infizstrietine Private Finited
Key Interiors Raallours Private Linited
Ferzom Poadtons Pid e Tinited
Megm nep Constravtions LLP

evorliit Bealtors Private Linilted
Mirahile Realboes Pajvate Limited
s Privale Tinified
5 Privile Limited
Mois Private Liniited
Feysihing Beadtons Private Timited

Camnar vel Beallors Private Liniiled

alturs Frivale Limited
w5 Private Limital

Beal Gen Bul'Mech Private Limited
Eevmieadons Reallurs Private Limiled
Redgum Bealtors Private Limited

Ky ace Braltors Poivate Limited
Ocean Homes Bealtors Private Timite
view Bealtors Privata Timited
. ors Privale Limited

th Reilors Privale [imited
qua Besttors Privale Limiled
Ajmesa Love Bealty Private Limited
Kevodivia Re diors Piivate Limited
Ranestone Realivrs Privale ]
Keyevita Beallows Private Tim

Sues

ed

Investmient in Delbenture & Preference Sharcs
Eapslone Constructions Pibvate Timited

x

Crest Peopesty Solitlons Private Limited

al Infrades clopuas Private Linited

ier Beaitoes Pidvate Limited

Trade receivables

Drcamz Duelloss LLP

Suhsidiaries

Suhsidt

Disidiaries
Subsidiaries
Limited Liability Parti rhip
Limited Lishility Pastrrr<hip
Limited Ly Particrship
Subsidiaries

</ KMP/ Eniily

L1 mr:---,'

uleidiaries

P L) .
haiching

ubsidiaties
Subisiliaries
Joint venlire
Subsidiaries
Silsidiaries

Rhsidiaries

Jolit veniure

ictiaries

G 2,460
Key manugement prrsinel 7 5
wiiesh Mehita Fanily Trost Belativels)/ KME/ Fntity 92 210
Purchase of 1DR
Pactiim Bealtors Privile Limited Belative(=)f KMP/ Entity L755 =
Security deposits
Prewium Builltech LIP Limited Liahitity Pastue <hip 1o
Outstanding balances
Particulars Hie Year ended Year ended
Helation March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Loans given
Dysiasty Infrabi e rs Private Timfted =

330
103
gg

2152
1,304
510
.
153
11047
758
2,146

27

1g,107
20
225
42
415
J20
ahy
570
6554
61
1,795
69
2,678
G27
L0
78
L2G

¥ F-. Tl

2564
L2




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
s Ratution March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
4|Inlerest receivable on dehentures
Kapstone Comstructions Private Limiled Juint venture 2, A 2,61
Keystone Infrastriclure Private Limiled Subsidiaries 1,073 1,873
Imperial Infradevelopers Private Limited Subsidiaries 1,860 1340
5{Interest receivable on deposits/loans
Imperial Infradevelopers Privale Limited Subsidiaries 4,324 1,689
Keyarhit Realtors Private Limited Subsidiniies - 9
Lueeal Realtors Privale Limiled Subsidiaries - 1,059
Krishika Developers Private Limitad Assoviates 21 21
Kevheights Realtors Private Limited Subsidiaries = 57
Riverstone Education Academy Private Limited Subsidisries 2% 143
Peal Gem Buildtech Private Limited Subsidiaries 2,845 1,078
Krymieadows Realtors Privele Limiled Bubsidiaries 22 -
Keyvihar Realtors Private Limitad Sulsidiaries 11 -
6|Loans and deposits taken
Rustomjoe Realty Private Limited (refer note 56) Subsidiaries 11,217 11,217
Partom Realtors Private Limiled Relative(s}/ EMP/ Entity 2 2
7| Trade payables
Ferrum Realtars Private Limiled Subsidiaries 2 2
Rustomjee Really Privals Limited Subsidiaries - 5
Crest Property Solutions Private Limiled Subsidiaries/Associsles 305 58
Credence Property Developers Private Limiled Subsidiaries £ 1
Dymasty Infrabuilders Private Limiled Subsidiaries 6 2
Real Gem Buildtech Private Limiled Subsidiaries 31 =
Mr. Boman Irani Key management personnel 546 =
Mr. Percy Chowdhry Koy management personnel 3.316 -
Mrs. Arnavaz S Chowdhry Relulivel=)/ KMP/ Futity 3,695 -
Feellent Realty Private Limited Subsidiaries 39 -
Keystona Infrasiructure Private Limited Subsidiaries 40 =
Partum Realtors Private Limiled Relalive(s)/ KMP/ Entity 1,755 -
Keyorbit Realtars Privale Limited Subsidinries - -
B! Security deposits taken towards rented premives
Rustomjes Cambiridge Inlernational Schoal Relativel s}/ KMP/ Entity 25 25
Parsn Builtwell Private Limited Relative{s}! KMP/ Entity 10 10
9|Security deposits given towards rented premises
Rustomjee Knowledge Cily Privale Limited Relativels)/ KMP/ Entity 104, 104
10| Guarantecs given
Keyspace Realtors Private Limited Subsidiazies 12,500 -
Dymasty Infrabuliders Privale Limited Suhsidiaries 7,000 14,200
Rustomijee Realty Private Limited Suhsidiaries - 16,500
Keystone Infrastructure Private Limited Subsidiaries - 10,000
Kapstone Comstmartions Private Limited Joint venlure 27,540 12,240
Partum Realtors Private Limited Relativef )/ KMP/ Enlity - 7,000
Ferrum Realtors Private Limited Subsidiaries - 3.300
Redgum Bealiors Privale Limited Joint venlure 3.500 2,500
Keyorbit Realtors Privale Limiled Subsidiaries 8 500 -
Keyhlue Realtors Privale Limited Subsidiaries 7:500 -
11| Other receivables
Kapstone Constraelions Private Limited Joint venture 951 493
Rustomjee Realty Private Limiled Subsidiaries 16 23
Keystone Infrastructure Privale Limited Subsidiaries 42 78
Rustomjee Academy For Glohal Career Privale Limiled Relutivelz)/ KMP/ Eniity 1 -
Luwest Realtoirs Private Limited Subsidiaries 69 67
Crest Properly Solulions Private Limiled Subsidiaries 29 20
Kev Interiors Realtors Privale Limited Subsidiaries 66 22
Real Gem Buildtech Private Limitsd Subsidiariss 495 228
MT K Kapiial Private Limited Bubsidiarizs 1 5
Credence Property Developers Private Liniled Subsidiaries 25 1
Dynasty Infrahuilders Private Limited Subsidiaries a7 9
Sanguinity Realty Privale Limited Relativels)/ KMP/ Entity 1 1
Rustomjee Cambridge International School Relativels}/ KMP/ Entily - 25
Farsn Builtwell Privale Limited Relative(s)/ KMP/ Entily 47 42
Koy sky Beallors Privale Limiled Suhsidiaries 46 4
Ferrum Realtors Private Limited Sulsidiaries o 3
Keyhlue Reallors Private Limited Subsidiaries 161 14
Keyorbit Realtors Privale Limited SBubsidiaries 2 -

12| Other payable
Keystone Infrastruciuce Private Limited

Subsidiaries

36




Keystone Realtors Limited
Notes to financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, zoz5 (Continued)

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

d)

Particulars

Relation

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Advances from customers
Imperial Infradeselopers Private Limited

Suhsidiaries

6.336 2,060
Chandresh Mehia Fomily Trust Belative(s)/ KMP/ Entily 3u3 210
Mr. 8ajal Gupla Key management personnel 7 =
Guarantecs taken
Dymaaty Infrabuilders Private Limiled Subsidiarizs 13 500 -
Security deposits
Fremium Buildtech LLP Limited Liability Partnership 1o -

Tor the personal guarantes given by directors for the lnans availad by the Group companies {refer note 25)
Transactions and oulstanding balances with Non-executive Directors
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Transactions during the year
Directors sitting fees and commission

Outstanding balances
Directore sitting fees and comminsion

71

45

57

Terms and conditions

Transactions were done in ordinary course of business and on normal terms snd conditions
Outstanding balances are unsecured and repayable in cash. Loan to telated partios are inferest free exc =pl fur loan to Luceat Realliss Private Limited,
Imperial Infradevelopers Privale Limited, Riverstone Educatinn Academy Privile Limited, Keyheights Realtors Private Limted, Keyspace Realtors Privale
Limited, Dreamz Dwellers LLP, Keyvihar Realtors Privale Limiled, Keymeadows Realiors Private Limited, Keyorhit Realtors Privale Limited and Real Gem
Buildtech Private Limited which carries interest rate of 9% -18%. The purpose for which loans are given (futherance of business) are not considered

prijudicial to the company's interest,

45




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amyounds in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slaled)

Nuote-50 Ratins Analvsis and its elements

% change from
Particulars Asat As at March 31, 2024 Rensons for significant variance in above ratio
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 to March g1,
2025
Cugrsal Ratlo 4.11 2.67 16.29% Nat applivable helow threadinld,
o ; Net Debt Equity Ratio has decreased due to reduction in
ebt-Eqguity Ralin : -60.24% . . + s ;
Delt SALHLY ¥ . 0.14 045 6':‘ 24 1'<~rl'<mmb'! znd increass I.l:l.ea.;ml;'-ﬂunns tl:e)ur.
y Debt service eoverage ratio deercased mainly on account of higher
Nebil Service Coverage Ral 2 -45.57% i * ¢
Debt Service Coverage Ratio oat 057 45:57% repayment of borrewings during the year.
L ity is decreased mainl crin increase i
Return o Bigsidly Rabie 004 & a4 i::::] on equily is decresssd mainly on acoomnt of incieasz in
Firstd cali i :, Decrease in Inventory lurmover ealio i mainly on acconnt of
ATRIOER Lrigves SHin 0.32 wAr Tk decrease in enst of goosds sold during the year,
Trade Receivables turnover ratio q2.24 2854 -1f. 36 % Not applicable below theeshiold,
. ) Trade pavahles turnuver ration increased mainly on account of
Trade payables turmaser raifa 238 147 48.34% increasgin tolal purchases,
The ratio has decreased due to lower Revenus vecognised during
capital AW r'. .25 ” bk . - D 3 -
Mt eagital tnever Tatin B35 058 5779 the year and increase in working capital,
The varfation is an account of Inerease in gross margin as
ofit Tatic i 53-62% 7
Net profit ratin 017 L 53 comnpared to previous yoar,
Return on Capilal emplived 0.06 0.a8 -29.41% Not applicable below threshald.
Relyrn on investment 0 .05 006 -21.44% Not applicable helow threshold,

Elements of Ratio - ]
E As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
AT Domtrator Denominator Numerslor Ther inal Numerator Denominalor
Current Liabilities (excluding
Current Ralin Current Assels Current Maturities of Long 30, Aha 10h,435 377,500 107,006
term Deht)
Debt-Equity Ratin Debt (Borrowing) Total Equity 34007 259.954 74,164 165,311
Profit for the year + Finanee | Inferest + pricipal = i
Iy ic v o A 15,646 50,622 16,724 20,430
Deekit Servies Corsrage R cnst + Depreciation Repayment g
Relumn on Equity Ratio Frofit for the year Avernge Tolal Equity 0,345 208,545 11,1643 1R 413
Tnventary turnover ratio Cost of Goods Suld Average Inventory 27,318 17,382 Bo.p52 123,599
Trade Receivables turnover ratio Revenus from cperation Aversge trade receivahle 55,063 1,708 101,045 2,622
Trade payables turnover ralio Tolal Purchase Average trade payable 71,675 32,812 41,438 28 140
Current Assets - Curzent
Net capital lurnover ratin Revenue fram operation Liahilities {(excluding Current 58,063 224,225 101,045 173,604
Maturities of Long term Deln)
Net puodit catio Profil far the yesr Revenue from operation 8.345 55 063 1,163 101,045
Profit Before Tax + Finance| Taogible Net Worth + Total " i
=hurn on Capital empleye 17,042 286 5 16,40 237.363
Rt o Gapial mmphaysd ceat debt - Deferred Tax Assels i 4 9,403
Relurn on investment P:'L‘m Before Tax + Pinaneel.q ] dssets 17,942 4Rg, Azh 19,473 331,001
CO




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 51 - Contingent linhilities

Description Az at A at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Claims against the company not acknowledged as delit

Ineome tax matter (tefer nole 3 below) 2.358 2,455

Inidlirect tax mallers (refer nole 4 el w) 8,436 R,436

Other matier (refer fnke 5 beliw) s 375

Nrte

L Itis net practicable for the Compuny to 2<ttnate the timing of cash cutflows, if any, in respect of the ahove pending rescdution of the respeclive proceedings

2. The Company has evaluated the impact of the Supreme Courl (SC) judgement dated Febrijary 28, 2019 in cas¢ of "Vivekananda Vidyamandit And Others Ve The
Regivnal Provident Fund Carnmiceioner (IT) West Bengal" and the related cirealer (Circular No, C-1/10 4332019/ Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20,
2019 issued by the Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation in relation to nam-exlusion of eertain allowances from the definition of "basic wages” of the relesant
empluyees for the purposes of delemmining eontr M to provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funde & Miscallaneons Provisions Aet, 1952, In the
2esessment of the management which is supported by legal advice, the Company believes that the aforesaid jndgement does nol have malerdal impact on the
Commpany. The Comnpany will continue ta manitor and evaluals its position based on fisture svenis and develapments,

3. The Company has angoing disputes wilh direct tax authorities relating to ax Leatment of certain ftems, These mainly inciude timing difference of expwn <
elaimad, tax treatment of cerlain flems of ncome/expense, ete.

4, There are pending liligations telating to inpul tax credit matters incu ding interest, penalties and exemption availnient,
5. Company is invalved in certain legal and civil elaims,
Nole 52 - Dues to micro and small enterprises

The Comipany has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Mediym Enlerprise Developmant Act. 2006 (MSMED Act), The discls wFE purstant
to the said act is 2= frillows:

As at and for the Ag arand for the

Particulars year ended March  year ended March

31,2025 31,2024
a) Principal amount due to supplicrs registered under the MSMED Azt and remaining unpaid as at year end, 405 332
b) Interest amount due to suppliers registered nnder the MSMED Act and rema ing unpaid as at year end. 12 4
€) Principal amwunts paid to seppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the - -
year,
d) Interest paid, other than ynder section 16 of MEMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, - -
beyond the appointed day during the year,
&) Interest paid, under section 16 of MSMED Acl, to suppliers Tegisterad nnder the MSMED Art, bevond the > *
appointed day during the year.
f) Intercat dhue and payable towands suppliers registered nnder MSMED Act, for payments already made - -
&) Further inlerest remaining due and payable for carlier years 4 *
Note 53 - Assets pledged as security

Asat Agat

Description March 31, zoz5 March 31, 2024
Traile receivables - 447
Vehicles 281 406
In degosil acconnts 769 1,498
In currend and escrow accounls 1,400 1,502
Inventaries 24,115 BR.555
Total 26,565 59,408




Keyslone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Nole 54 - Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Note 54.1 - Unsatisfied performance obligation

The following table shises how much of the teventie recognised in the current reparling perind relates to carried-forward contract Habiliiies:

. Year ended Year ended
Particul
OV March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Bevernie pecogiised tiat was foctoded in thie enniract liabilities halance at the beginning of the year 23,024 61,104
Reconeiliation of revenue recognised with contract price:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Centract price 58,249 104,762
Less: Diseount § stamgp duty (3,18a) (3.717)
Revenue from operations 55,063 101,045
Note 54,2 - Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31, 2024
Timing of recognisation Timing of recognisation
At a point in time Over tine Atz point in time Crver thine
Revenug fiom Operations 55,063 100,445 600

Nole 55 - Interest in other entities

Dielails of Comnpany's interest in ather enlities iz as follows:

Ownership/ Economic Interests
Name of Entity Asat As at
Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Joint controlled entities
Rustomjee Evershine Joint Veoture 50% s0%
Fortune Partners® * =
Lok fortung Joint Venlure * Ga% 600

The conntry of incorporation of shove entities iz in India
* refer nole 5600)
Significant judgement : clax

cation of join

The company has entered into Partnership firms / Associntion of person whose legal form confers scparstion between the parties to the juint arrangement and the
Compony ilself. Also, as per the contractual armengements, the parties 1o the joint arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the lishilities, relating to
the arrangement. Accondingly the Joiot arrangements have been identified as Jnint controlled entities,

Financial impact of joint controlled entities

ny accounts for asects, liab

arrang
aperations INR 297 (March 31, 2024 : INR 183),
7,051 (March 31, 2024 : INR 7.357), tolal liahili
2024 : INR 93).

During the previous year, The Comps

jointly comtralled entities 1.8, Forlung Pariners and Lok Fortune joint venture {through Fortune Partners) increased ss follows:

o, revenue smd expenses relating to its dniercal in joint confrollad entities hosed on the inlemnal agreeinents/
s entered jnlo between the parties to the joiot arrangements for execution of projects. Aceordingly the Company has recognised revenue from
total expenditure (including tax) INR 476 (March 31, 2024 : INR 331 ), tolal aseels as at March 31, 2025 ; INR
es as at March 31, 2025 : INR 5727 (March 31, 2024 : INR 4,811 ) and loss of March 31, 2025 : INR 36 (March 31,

any has increased itz sake in Fortune Paniners to 60.40%, 25 2 result of which, the Company propartion to net assels in the

Particulars

Amount

Inventories
Other Anancial Habilities (nel off assels)

2,688
(2,655

Net Assels

Note 56 - Merger
(a) Merger of Toccala Realtors Private Limited :

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Campany had received the Hon'ble Naticnal Company Law Tribenal (NCLT) approval for the scheme of amalgamation
(the Scheme) of Toccata Realtors Privale Limiled (TRPL) with the Company on May 4, 2023 and had filed the order copy with the Regisirar of the Companies on
June 16, 2023 (ellective daie’). The Company had accounted for the assets and lishilities of TRPL on a line by line hasic after eliminating the imtercompany
receivahle and payahle balances between the Company and TRPL, and applying the prinviple of Ind AS 109 ‘Finaneial Instruments’, The Company had sccounted for
fair volue of TRPL's net asscts amounting to INR 14,265 Lakh as relurn of capital az reduction of the cost of investment under Tnvestmenis” and INR 1,208 Lakh as
relurn on capital undear ‘Orher Tneome',

(b) Merger of Key Fortune Relalors Private Limited ;
The Scheme of amalgamation ("the Scheme") for merger of Key Fortune Belalors Privale Limiled (whally owned subsidiary) in the Company was approved by the
Murmbai Bench of National Company Law Tribueal and the Company received the certifisd Liue copy of {2e order on February 19, 2055, The Company has filed the
zame with Regislrar of Companies, Mumbai on March 20, 2025 which is the effective date of merger. The appointed date of the Scheme is April 1, 2024. The merger
has been accounted woder the ‘pooling of interests’ method in accordance with Appendix C of Indian Accounting Standard ('Ind AS') 103 'Business-C
and campacatives in the standalons financial statements have hren restated to give effect of the merger,

sinalions




Keystone Realtors Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amnounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 57 - Completion of Qualified Institational Placement (QIP)
During the year ended March 91, 2028, the Cornpany had completed its QIP of 12,121,212 equity shares of face value of INR 10 cavch at an fseue price of INR 660 per
share sgeregating to INR 80,000 comprising of fresh fssue.

In respect of the afireaaid QIP, the Company had incwrred INR 1,728 as share issue expeines, The jscoe expences amcunting to INR 1,728 were adjusted to
securilies preminm,

Noie 58 - Utilisation of QIP Prucecds
The company had received an amount of Rs 78,272 {net of share fssue sxpenses of Re 1,728) during year ended March 31, 2025 from procesds ool of [resh fssue of
Ar

eqjuily shares, The utilisalion of Net QIP FProcesds iz summarized as below,

Particulars Amount Reccived |Utilised upto Mareh|Unutilised as on
31,2025 March 31, 2025

Part funding the costs for acquisition of land, consideration and other costs for entering 49,000 49,000 *

into joint development agreements or joint veniure ements, costs of redevelopment of]

propertizs and ahlaining the government and slatulory approvals for our developmenls

Repayment/ prepayment, in part or full of certain of our harrowings aveiled by our 11,000 11,000 -

o pany

Crneral eorporals purposes 18,372 12,014 6,258

Total 78,272 72,014 6.258

Titerest incomie on deposit from unutilised QIF proceeds 1,869

Total 78,272 72,014 8,127

Note 59 - Additional Regulatory Information

i) Delails of Benami property Held

No procerdings have been initinted on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Frohibilion) Art, 1988 (45
of 19A&) and Rules made thereunder.

ii) Borrowings secured agninst current assels

The Company haz bortowings fom banks and fnancial institutions on the basiz of security of current assets, slso refer noie 53. Huwever, there are no requireiments
of filing guarterly returns or staterments with banks 33 per the terms of relevant agreements.,

iii) Wilful Defaulter

The company has never been dectared ag wilfinl defaubter by any hank or finanvial institution or government or any governmient sutharity,

iv) Relationship with struck off companies

The commpany has no transactions with the eampanies struck off under Companies Aet, 2013 or Companies Art, 1956,

v) Complianee with numher of layers of econmpanies

The company has complied with the number ef layers prescribed nnder the Campanies Act, 2013,

vi) Compliance with approved scheme{s) of arrungements

The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an acconnting impact on current or previous financial year (refer note 56).

vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

The company has not advanced ar kaned ar invested funds to any other person(=) or entity{iee), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the nnderstanding
that the Intermediary shall

a. directly or indivectly lend or invest in ather persons or entities identified in any manner whalsoever by or on

behalf of the company (THlimale Benefiviagies) or

bl provide any guarsntes, securlty of the ke to or on beball of the ultimate beaeliciaries

]g)i:t:n otl; loan Amount further
" s & Amount of loan |intermediary/ Name of ultimate ]i:t::renl:il:gi to
ame of intermediary given Date of amount beneficiary e
the ultimate
further loaned to i
! beneficiary
benefeciary
As at March 31, 2025
Nil
As at March 31, 2024 1 | I 1
Nil

Exccpt as detailed helow, the enmpany has nol received any fund [rem any personfs) or entit(ies), including foreign entities (Funling Party) with the
wnderslanding (whether recorded in writing or athenwise) that the company shall:

a, direcily or indirertly lend or {nvest in eiher persons or antitiss identified in any manner whatsoever by or on

behalf of the Fueding Party (Himate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guaranies, security or the like on hehall of the witimate beneficiaries




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the standalone financial stalements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Date of loan taken
from Funding .:-'T::;;f_nrﬂ\er
. Amountof loan | Party/ Date of Name of ultimate o
Name of Funding Party . i IF
g - taken amount further beneficiary i !.é.rm.edldry =
the ultimate
loaned to benefici
benefeciary e
As at March 31, 2025
The qualified institutiona) buyers 8,384 |Varions dates Keymeadows Bealiors 8,294
Privale Limil=d
The qualified institulions] buyers 5.230 |Various dates Keystone Infrastructure 5440
Private Limiled
The gualifi=d institutional buyers .060 [Various dales Imiperial Infradevelopers 3.060
Privale Limited
The epiealified iustitutional buyers 9,602 |Various dates Keysky Realtors Private 3,602
Limited
The qualified inslit 2,918 |Various 4 Kevhlue Realtnrs Private 2,9iR
Limited
The qualified institulional buyers 2,150 |Various dates Kevhlonm Realty Private 2,150
Tamilel
The gulified institutional buyers 1,540 |Various dales Rustomjee Realty 1,530
Private Limiied
The qualified institutional buyers g71 |Various dates Keyearth Realtors g71
Private Limited
The gualified institutinnal buyers gao |Various datss Redgum Beallors Private Qo0
Limiled
The gualified institutional buyers 550 |Varions dotes Navahlyudaya Nagsr 530
Developmeant Private
Limited
The qualified instilutional buyers 501 |Various dales Keymarvel Realtors 501
Private | -
The gualified institulional buyers 500 |Various dates Flagraoti Realtors 500
Private Limiled
The gualified institutional buvers 220 [Various dales Rz Doshi Exponts 230
Privale Limited
The o Jified insiitutional busers 179 |Various dates Mirabila Realiors 179
Private Limiled
The qualified institutional buyers 164 |Various dales Enticier Realtors Privale 164
Limited
The gualified instititional buyess 52 |Varions dal=sg Xoallent Really Privale 52
Limited
The qualified institutional buyers 50 |Various dates Keyolivia Realtors 50
Private Limiied
The qualified institulional buyers 41 |Varions dates Kev Galaxy Reallors 41
Private Limiled
The qualified insijlutional buyers 21 |Vainus dales Firestone Developers 21
Privale Limiled
The gualified institutional buyers 20 |Varigus dates KEeyevila Reallors 20
Private Limited
The qualified institutional buyers 10 |Various dales Nouvean Develapers 10
Private Limiled
The gualified institutional buyers 10 |Varicus dates Keyheights Realtors 10
Frivale Limiied
The qualified institutional buyers 2 [Various dales Kevace Reallors Privale 2
Limited
As at March 31, 2024
Axiz Bank Limiled 71,616 |November 0g, 2023 Real Gem Buildiech 71,616




Keystone Realtors Limiled
Notes to the standslone fi ial stat ts as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amnounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

viii) Undisclosed income

There is oo income surrendered or disclised as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Ineime Tax Art, 1961, that has not been
recvirded in the hooks of aceount.

ix) Details of eryplo currency or virtual currency

The cownpuny has not traded or invested in erypho currency or virtual eurzency during the curr=nt of previons jear,

%) Valuatinn of property, plant and eguipment, intangible assct and investment property

The counpang has not revaloed its property, plant and squipment (ineluding right-of-use assets) or intangitle assets orlth during the curtent oF previous year.

xi) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

Thewe are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyind the statutory period,

xii) Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
The bortowings ahialned by the campany from banks and financial institutions have been applied fon the purposes for which sich lowins wiere was taken,

xiii) Title deed of immovable properties

The title deeds of all the fmmeavalile propertiss {olher than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in faveur of the
lessee), as discloned in note 3, note 4 and note 5 to the standalone financial statements, are beld in the name of the company.

Note 60 - Audit trail

As per the requirements of mile 2(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 the Commpany vees accounting saftware for maintaining its books of aceount that have
a feature of reconding andil trall of zach and every tronesction crenting an adit log of zach change made in the books of acconnt aling with the date when surh
chianges were made within such aconunting software. This feature of recording andit trail has operated throughout the year except for cerlain transactions, changes
mada through specific aceess and for direct datals
perthe statulory requirement for recird relention.

= changes and ne andit trail features were tumperad during the yoar and have been preserved by the company as

Note 61 - Dividend
The Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of INR 1.50 per fully paid-up equity share of INR 10/- each (i.e. 15% of face value of equity share) for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025, suliject to approval of the sharcholders in the snsuing Annual Gener il Meeting of the Campany.

Noie 62 - All amounts in Financial statement are tounded off to INR lakhs, Amount helow rounding off norms are reported as *.

o,
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Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and Tor the s car ended March 31, 2025
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These are the notes referred to i onr eport of even date,
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